
 

 

 
MEETING: PLANNING COMMITTEE 
  
DATE: 6th February 2019 
  
TIME: 6.30 pm 
  
VENUE: Town Hall, Bootle 
  
 
 Member 

 
Councillor 

Substitute 
 
Councillor 

 Cllr. Daren Veidman (Chair) 
Cllr. Michael O'Brien (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr. Nigel Ashton 
Cllr. Janis Blackburne 
Cllr. Denise Dutton 
Cllr. Terry Jones 
Cllr. John Kelly 
Cllr. Bob McCann 
Cllr. Brenda O'Brien 
Cllr. Pat O'Hanlon 
Cllr. Diane Roscoe 
Cllr. Paula Spencer 
Cllr. Carla Thomas 
Cllr. Lynne Thompson 
Cllr. Paul Tweed 
 

Cllr. June Burns 
Cllr. Leslie Byrom C.B.E. 
Cllr. John Dodd 
Cllr. John Sayers 
Cllr. Simon Jamieson 
Cllr. Tony Brough 
Cllr. Linda Cluskey 
Cllr. Matt Gannon 
Cllr. Janet Grace 
Cllr Matt Gannon 
Cllr. Anne Thompson 
Cllr. Steve McGinnity 
Cllr. Gordon Friel 
Cllr John Dodd 
Cllr. Catie Page 
 

 
 
 COMMITTEE 

OFFICER: 
Ruth Appleby 

 Telephone: 0151 934 2181 
 E-mail: ruth.appleby@sefton.gov.uk 
 
 
 

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist. 

 

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting. 

 
 

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or personal interest arises, which is not 
already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda. 
 
Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, 
he/she must withdraw from the meeting room, including from 
the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any item 
of business in which he/she has an interest, except where 
he/she is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of a 
dispensation. 
 
Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or staff member 
representing the Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including 
from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest or whether 
the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the 
meeting and vote on the relevant decision. 
  

 

3.   Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 January 2019 
 

(Pages 5 - 8) 

4.   Applications for Planning Permission - Petitions  

 Report of the Chief Planning Officer 
  

 

 A DC/2018/00801 - 41 to 43 King Street, Southport   (Pages 9 - 16) 
  Report of the Chief Planning Officer 

 
 B DC/2018/01767 - Marshside RSPB Nature Reserve, 

Marine Drive, Southport   
(Pages 17 - 26) 

  Report of the Chief Planning Officer 
 

 C DC/2018/02220 - The Blundellsands Classic, 19 
Blundellsands Road West, Blundellsands   

(Pages 27 - 34) 

  Report of the Chief Planning Officer 
 

 D DC/2018/01439 - 84 College Road, Crosby   (Pages 35 - 44) 
  Report of the Chief Planning Officer 

 

5.   Applications for Planning Permission - Approvals  

 Report of the Chief Planning Officer 
  

 

 A DC/2018/02114 - The Marine Travel Arena, Rossett 
Park, College Road, Crosby   

(Pages 45 - 50) 

  Report of the Chief Planning Officer 
 



6.   Applications for Planning Permission - Refusals  

 Report of the Chief Planning Officer 
  

 

 A DC/2018/01681 - Land West Of Damfield Lane, 
Maghull   

(Pages 51 - 52) 

  Report of the Chief Planning Officer  
 

7.   Visiting Panel Schedule (Pages 53 - 
54) 

 Schedule for site visits on 4 Feb 2019 
  

 

8.   Planning Appeals Report (Pages 55 - 
74) 

 Report of the Chief Planning Officer 
  

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN” 

 

49 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, SOUTHPORT 
ON  16 JANUARY 2019 

 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Veidman (in the Chair) 

Councillor Michael O'Brien (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors Blackburne, Jones, John Kelly, McCann, 
Brenda O'Brien, O'Hanlon, Roscoe, Spencer, 
Thomas, Tweed, Dodd, Jamieson and 
Lynne Thompson 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Councillors McKinley, John Sayers and 
Yvonne Sayers 

 
 
88. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ashton, Dutton, and 
Hands. 
 
 
 
89. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 
No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received. 
 
 
 
90. MINUTES  
 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 December, 2018 be confirmed 
as a correct record. 
 
 
 
91. DC/2018/01681 - LAND WEST OF DAMFIELD LANE, MAGHULL  
 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Chief Planning Officer which 
recommended that the above application for the erection of 14 detached 
dwelling houses, access road and associated landscaping, a pond feature 
and a nature trail, be approved subject to the conditions and for the 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 16TH JANUARY, 2019 
 

50 

reasons stated or referred to in the report and completion of a Section 106 
agreement. 
 
Prior to consideration of the application, the Committee received a petition 
from Town Councillor Sayers on behalf of objectors against the proposed 
development and a response from the agents Messrs Egan and Gee. 
 
The Chair exercising his discretion permitted the developer, Mr.Conlon, to 
address the Committee to answer queries and questions raised by 
Members. 
 
Councillor McKinley, as Ward Councillor, spoke in objection to the 
application. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the recommendation be not approved and the application be refused 
for the following reasons: 
 
The site is designated as White Land in the Sefton Local Plan and is not 
allocated for housing development.  
 
The proposed development conflicts with the Maghull Neighbourhood 
Plan. 
 
 
92. PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS  
 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Chief Planning Officer on the 
progress on appeals lodged with the Planning Inspectorate. 
 
Appellant 
 

Proposal/Breach of Planning Control Decision 

Ms. Barbara 
Roberts 

DC/2018/01218 - 12 Mill Road 
Ainsdale Southport PR8 3HU - 
appeal against the Council’s refusal 
to grant planning permission for the 
erection of a first floor and a single 
storey extension to the rear of the 
dwellinghouse. 
 

Dismissed 
17/12/2018 

Mr. Michael Connell DC/2018/01160 - 43 Moorgate 
Avenue Crosby Liverpool L23 0UE 
appeal against the Council’s refusal 
to grant planning permission to 
replace existing front garden wall and 
fence with new brick wall with 
concrete copings and pier caps 
(retrospective application). 
 

Dismissed 
07/12/2018 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 16TH JANUARY, 2019 
 

51 

Mrs.S.P.Yates DC/2018/00891 - 67 Windsor Road 
Southport PR9 9BX - appeal against 
the Council’s refusal to grant 
planning permission for  the erection 
of a dormer extension to the rear of a 
dwellinghouse including alteration of 
roof from hipped end to gable. 
 

Dismissed 
27/11/2018 

Mr.A.Verinder DC/2018/01239 - 42 Hillsview Road 
Ainsdale Southport PR8 3PN - 
Erection of a single storey extension 
to the side, a garage to the opposite 
side of the dwellinghouse following 
the demolition of existing garage 
(retrospective application). 

Dismissed 
27/11/2018 

 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 6th February 2019 

Subject:  DC/2018/00801 
 41-43  King Street, Southport  PR8 1LG  
 
Proposal: Proposed change of use of 41 and 43 King Street from a guesthouse 

(C1) to a 10 bed House in Multiple Occupation (Sui Generis) including 
the erection of a dormer to the front elevation.  Resubmission of 
DC/2018/00231, withdrawn on 27.04.2018 

 
Applicant: Mr David Birkbeck 
   
 

Agent: Mr Joshua Hellawell 
 PWA Planning 
 

Ward:  Dukes Ward  
 

  

Summary 
             
The main issues to consider are the principle of development, the impact on the living 
conditions of future occupiers and neighbouring properties, the impact on highways safety 
and the impact on the street scene. 
 
It is considered that the proposal is acceptable in principle and will not cause any harm to 
the living conditions of future occupiers of the property or to neighbouring properties.  The 
proposal will not affect highway safety and will not cause any harm to the appearance of 
the street scene. 
 
The proposal therefore complies with local policies and is recommended for approval 
subject to conditions. 
 

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions  
   

Case Officer Mr Stephen O'Reilly 
 

 

Email planning.department@sefton.gov.uk 
 

Telephone 0345 140 0845 (option 4) 
 

Application documents and plans are available at: 

http://pa.sefton.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=P7SSFPNWMPJ00 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4a

mailto:planning.department@sefton.gov.uk


Site Location Plan 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4a



The Site 
            
The application relates to numbers 41 and 43 King Street, Southport.  These properties are 
part of a terrace of properties and number 43 is at the end of the terrace.  The properties 
are three storeys in height. 
  

History 
         
S/12788 - Change of use from guest house to rest home.  Approved 12/12/79. 
 
DC/2018/00231 - Change of use of 41 and 43 King Street from a guesthouse (C1) to a 14 
bed House in Multiple Occupation (Sui Generis).  Withdrawn 26/04/18. 

 

Consultations 
 
Housing Standards Team 
Proposal will fall within the scope of Mandatory HMO Licensing regime under Part 2 of the 
Housing Act 2004. 
 
Based on the room sizes and levels of amenity, occupancy will be restricted to 11 persons 
in each premises. 
 
Following the receipt of amended plans, reduction of the occupancy to 10 persons in each 
premises.  Concerns also that the storage rooms could be used in the future as an 
additional residential unit. 
 
Building Control 
No objection  
 
Flooding  And Drainage Manager 
No comments to make on the application  
 
Highways Manager 
No objection to the proposal subject to conditions relating to vehicle and cycle parking  

  

Neighbour Representations 
          
8 letters of objection and a petition containing 27 signatures have been received from 
neighbouring properties.  The issues raised include: 
 

-  Town has a shortage of accommodation providers and so to allow the conversion of 
the property to HMO will only exacerbate this problem 

-  King Street is a core part of the town centre and such a development would be out 
of character for the street 

-  HMO should not be located within the town centre 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4a



-  King Street needs more investment in order to attract new business, a HMO will do 
little to encourage such investment 

-  Evidence suggests that the presence of HMO serves to deter investment, HMO in 
other area causing concern from neighbouring business's due to anti-social 
behaviour 

-  Property previously used as an unlicensed HMO, cause issues through police 
attending due to ant-social behaviour 

-  Demographic of the neighbourhood is not suited to so many occupants and the 
possible number of vehicles vying for spaces 

-  Potential for large numbers of people entering and leaving the property at any or all 
times of the day or night 

-  Car parking is a major problem, does not offer sufficient parking for the proposal 
-  Car parking area used by 37 King Street 
-  Flats would have less impact on the residents of King Street 
-  Limited size of rooms to be provided 
-  Very little recreational space 

 
Policy Context 
 
The application site lies within an area designated as Primarily Residential in the Sefton 
Local Plan which was adopted by the Council in April 2017.   
 

Assessment of the Proposal  
 
The application has been amended from the original submission.  The original proposal 
was for the use of the premises as a 14 bed House in Multiple Occupation (HMO).  A 
revised layout has been submitted for a 10 bed HMO. 
 
The main issues to consider are the principle of development, the impact on the living 
conditions of future occupiers and neighbouring properties, the impact on highways safety 
and the impact on the street scene. 
 
Principle 
 
The application site lies within an area identified as Primarily Residential in the Local Plan.  
The proposal therefore complies with policy HC3, "Primarily Residential Areas", of the 
Local Plan. The proposed development is therefore acceptable in principle. 
 
Living Conditions 
 
Policy HC4, "House Extensions, Houses in Multiple Occupation and Flats", seeks to 
ensure that development will not cause significant harm to the character of the area or the 
living conditions of either the occupiers of the property or to neighbouring properties. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 4a



The proposal meets Council's standards in terms of room sizes and having a reasonable 
outlook. 
 
The premises would have a shared kitchen and lounge to the ground floor, with storage 
rooms available on the ground and first floor.  The rooms at first and second floor level 
would each have a kitchenette.  A condition can be attached to ensure that the storage 
rooms at ground and first floor are not used as residential accommodation and are to be 
retained as storage areas only.   
 
Due to the number of bedsits proposed, 90m2 of private amenity space is recommended - 
91m2 is available.  This would not include the area between the side elevations of the 
property and the boundary wall to the neighbouring properties which would be used for bin 
storage.  This would not cause any reduction in outlook from any of the habitable room 
windows. 
 
No additional windows will be installed to the premises and therefore the proposal will not 
result in any additional loss of privacy to neighbouring properties. 
 
Number 41 King Street shares a party wall with 39 King Street.  In order to prevent any 
harm to number 39 through noise and disturbance, it is proposed to attach a condition to 
any permission requiring a scheme of sound insulation to be installed on the party wall.   
 
 
Highway Safety 
 
Car parking is provided to the front of the property. This will be capable of accommodating 
4 vehicles.   
 
The application site is located within the Town Centre and therefore is within an area that 
is accessible via public transport with bus routes and Southport Train station within walking 
distance of the site, serving the local and wider area. The number of spaces is therefore 
considered to meet the needs of this proposal. 
 
Concerns have been raised with regards to the spaces being occupied by vehicles 
belonging to neighbouring properties. This is not something that the Planning Department 
can police and would be a matter for the management company of the premises. 
 
The submitted plan indicates that cycle parking will be provided to the rear of the premises 
but no details have been provided to specify the amount.  This should be one space per 
unit and therefore a condition would be attached to any permission to require this. 
 
Street Scene 
 
The proposal includes the installation of two dormers to the front of the property.  These 
dormers will be similar in size and appearance to other dormers within the area and 
therefore will not cause any harm to the character and appearance of the area. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4a



 
Conclusion 
 
The proposal is acceptable in principle and will not cause any harm to the living conditions 
of future occupiers of the property or to neighbouring properties.  The proposal will not 
reduce highway safety and will not affect the appearance of the street scene. 
 
The proposal therefore complies with local policies and is recommended for approval 
subject to conditions. 

 

Recommendation - Approve with Conditions  
 
Approve with Conditions  
 
Conditions  
 
This application has been recommended for approval subject to the following conditions 
and associated reasons: 
 
1) The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission. 
 
 Reason:  To comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990. 
 
2) a) A scheme of sound insulation to protect the existing residential dwellings at 39 

King Street from the proposed HMO shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority prior to the proposed change of use taking place.  

 
 b) The soundproofing shall be carried out in accordance with the scheme approved 

under (a) before the HMO is brought into use. 
 
 Reason: To prevent unreasonable noise and disturbance to neighbouring occupants 

in the interests of residential amenity. 
 
3) No part of the development shall be brought into use until areas for vehicle parking, 

turning and manoeuvring have been laid out, demarcated, levelled, surfaced and 
drained in accordance with the approved plan and these areas shall be retained 
thereafter for that specific use. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
4) No part of the development shall be brought into use until space and facilities for 

cycle parking for 10 cycles have been provided and these facilities shall be retained 
thereafter for that specific use. 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4a



 Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
5) The storage rooms as shown on the ground and first floor shall be used as storage 

rooms in conjunction with the hereby approved development and not as additional 
residential units. 

 
 Reason: In order to protect the living conditions of occupiers of the property. 
 
6) The development hereby granted shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 

following details and plans :- Location Plan, Proposed Floor Plans, 1239-PL11C, 
1239-PL-14, 1239-PL15B, Sections. 

    
 Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory development. 
 
Informative 
 
1) The applicant is advised that the proposal will require the formal allocation of 

addresses.  Contact the Development and Support team on 0151 934 4569 or E-Mail 
snn@sefton.gov.uk to apply for a street name/property number. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4a



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 6th February 2019 

Subject:  DC/2018/01767 
 Marshside RSPB Nature Reserve, Marine Drive, Southport    
 
Proposal: Excavation to create a ditch and berm and extend and modify small 

pools  
 
Applicant: Mr Tony Baker 
  RSPB 
 

Agent: Mr Tony Baker 
 RSPB 
 

Ward:  Cambridge Ward  
 

  

Summary 
 
This proposal seeks consent for a new perimeter ditch, extensions to two existing pools, 
infilling of small areas of water and their replacement with equal-sized areas of new water 
in improved strategic locations and the creation of a low berm at the base of the outer 
embankments along two of the three sides of the marsh to Crossens Marsh within the 
RSPB nature reserve. 
 
The main issue to consider is the impact on flood risk within and outside of the site.  Based 
upon the information provided within a submitted Flood Risk Assessment it is considered 
that the proposal will lessen flood risk and is acceptable. 
 

Recommendation: Approve with Conditions  
 

   

Case Officer Mr Neil Mackie 
 

 

Email planning.department@sefton.gov.uk 
 

Telephone 0345 140 0845 (option 4) 
 
 

Application documents and plans are available at: 

http://pa.sefton.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PFO713NWHAE00 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4b

mailto:planning.department@sefton.gov.uk


Site Location Plan 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4b



The Site 
           
The Marshside RSPB nature reserve wetland site to the north east of Southport Town 
Centre.  It is bordered by Marine Drive (oft referred to as the coast road) to the north and 
residential properties and waste water treatment works to the east and south.  The site is 
designated as Green Belt and also for its nature importance. 
  

History 
         
The following applications are of relevance to this proposal: 
 
S/2012/1006 - Variation of Condition number 2 pursuant to planning application 
S/2011/1104 approved 06/10/2011 - not to excavate pool 3 and to utilise the spoil removed 
from pool 2 to create access ramps to the sea embankment.  Approved 23rd October 
2012. 
 
S/2011/1104 - Excavation of two pools and movement of spoil to areas within the nature 
reserve.  Approved 6th October 2011. 
 
N/2004/0804 - Excavation of pool and movement of spoil to existing spoil embankments 
along Hesketh Road.  Approved 16th September 2004. 
 
N/2003/0729 - Excavation of pool and movement of spoil to cattle race.  Approved 8th 
August 2003. 
     

Consultations 
 
Flooding and Drainage Manager 
No objection from the Lead Local Flooding Authority  
 
Environment Agency 
Initial objection due to the absence of a Flood Risk Assessment. 
 
Following the submission of Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) (Tony Baker, Flood Risk 
Assessment. PP-07258200 - Crossens Inner Marsh Habitat Works, dated November 2018) 
received in this office 30th November 2018 we are satisfied the FRA demonstrates the 
proposed development will not be at an unacceptable risk of flooding or exacerbate flood 
risk elsewhere. We therefore withdraw our previous objection. 
 
The proposed development must proceed in strict accordance with this FRA and the 
mitigation measures identified as it will form part of any subsequent planning approval. Any 
proposed changes to the approved FRA and / or the mitigation measures identified will 
require the submission of a revised FRA as part of an amended planning application. 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4b



Recommend that the information provided to the applicant in respect of an environmental 
permit and culverting consent, which has been done.  
 
Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service 
The application has not been supported by an Ecological Appraisal. In this instance, an 
Ecological Appraisal is not required for the following reasons: 
 

- The site is within nature reserve, which contains a mosaic of habitats and a large 
number protected species. However, a wide range of information is already 
available for these sites from which accurate conclusions can be drawn; and 

- The proposed works involve modifications to existing habitat features, which are 
designed to improve the functionality of the sites for the bird population, which are 
qualifying features of the designated sites. 

 
The development site is within the following European sites and Local Plan policy NH2 
applies: 
 

- Ribble and Alt Estuaries SPA; and 
- Ribble and Alt Estuaries Ramsar site. 

 
On this occasion, the development is unlikely to harm the features for which the sites have 
been designated: 
 

- The proposed development is unlikely to have a negative impact on the European 
sites. The Habitats Regulations 2017 require the planning authority to determine if 
the proposed development is connected to the conservation management of the 
site. if not, then undertake a Habitat Regulations Assessment screening for likely 
significant effects. As the proposed development is directly connected to the 
management of the site a HRA screening is not required.  

 
Natural England 
We have no objections to the proposals, the details of the application have been fully 
discussed with our site lead for the Ribble Estuary SSSI/Ribble & Alt Estuaries SPA & 
Ramsar and we are satisfied with all of the proposals.  

  

Neighbour Representations 
          
Letters of objections received from four properties on Exmoor Close, Truro Avenue and 
Bankfield Lane  
 
Points of objection are: 

Page 20

Agenda Item 4b



- The houses in Exmoor Close flooded in 1980 due to a combination of high tide, 
heavy rainfall and inadequate drainage of the ditch that runs alongside the Water 
Treatment Works.  This resulted in a premium on house insurance and fear that this 
could be increased. The ditch adjacent to Exmoor Close has had to be clear and 
drained by the Environment Agency as it was overflowing and flooding gardens.  
There does not appear to be any mention of past and current flooding or any 
consultation with the Environment Agency on the proposed application.  Increasing 
the area of open water could make this existing problem worse. 

- Potential for increased footfall along the back of the properties in Exmoor Close and 
Truro Avenue, which can be quite intrusive at times 

- Potential for increase car parking in the area which is already problematic. 
- The marsh in this area rarely now drains except in extremely hot weather (as the 

case for summer 2018), possibly arising from tracked JCBs blocking some streams 
and opening up others 3 to 4 years ago 

- Pooling water has led to a mosquito/midge problem ensuring neighbours have to 
keep windows closed. 

- The attraction of birds already causes issues in spring/early summer (houses, cars 
and washing plastered with droppings) 

- Regular flooding of properties on Truro Avenue during periods of high rainfall and 
experience total ground saturation 

- Assurance required confirming that these works will not have a detrimental effect 
upon properties 

- Concerns raised regarding the maintenance of ditches, drains and pools at present 
 
Objections also relate to the electrified fencing and the impact on domestic animals and 
pets which may venture into the area, but this is development that by virtue of its location 
and scale does not require planning permission as it can be carried out as ‘permitted 
development’. 
 
Objectors also raise the potential impact on the value of properties but this is not a material 
planning consideration. 
 
On the 21st November a petition objecting to the proposal containing at least 25 
signatures was submitted to the Council, endorsed by Councillor Dodd.  The reasons for 
objecting are: 
 

1. Potential for flooding. Gardens on Truro Avenue and Exmoor Close. 
 

2. Electrifying the fence where children could potentially play. 
 

3. Worries in regard to operation of the proposed Sluice Gates. 
 

4. Potential for extra Mosquito infestation.  
 

5. Worries that the Marsh could be altered and if problems persisted would be difficult 
to revert to its present position. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4b



 
Ten letters of support from properties on Dunbar Road, Sandown Court, Hall Street and 
Padstow Close all Southport, Exwell Close Chorley, Oswald Close Kirkby, Coach House 
Drive Shevington, The Grove Penwortham, Sandford Close Harwood along with a 
professor at the University of Copenhagen. 
 
Points of support are: 
 

- Improvement work to one of this coast’s most important ecological sites must be 
supported 

- RSPB is doing a wonderful job managing the site and this will help that and help to 
put Southport on the map as a centre for wildlife conservation (reference to future 
projects) 

- This supports a bird reserve with an international reputation and the RSPB are a 
professional organisation who know what it appropriate 

- The proposals will be beneficial to the masses of wildlife that inhabit the area all 
year round and the many migrating birds that arrive every year 

- This will improve the area even more for wildlife.  The work that the RSPB have 
done over the years at Marshside has done much for wildlife on the Ribble Estuary 
and brought in an excellent free attraction for the town. 

- This work is essential in order to better control the water levels for the resident and 
visiting birds to an area of national importance 

    

Policy Context 
 
The application site lies within an area designated as Green Belt in the Sefton Local Plan 
which was adopted by the Council in April 2017.  
 

Assessment of the Proposal 
 
This proposal seeks consent for the following works as summarised within the submitted 
ecological statement: 
 
"The main elements of the plan are all aimed at either providing new habitat or improving 
existing habitat for wintering and breeding waterfowl. They are: 
 

- A new perimeter ditch 
- Extensions to two existing pools 
- Infilling of small areas of water and their replacement with equal-sized areas of new 

water in improved strategic locations 
- The creation of a low berm at the base of the outer embankments along two of the 

three sides of the marsh 
 
In addition, these works will facilitate the following (which do not require planning 
permission and so do not form part of the planning application): 

Page 22

Agenda Item 4b



 
- The installation of water control structures at two points of connection with the tidal 

marsh on the north side of the coast road 
- The installation of a new electrified, fox-proof, cattle fence around the perimeter of 

the marsh. 
 
The works as proposed and shown on the submitted information are appropriate in terms 
of land use policies within the Local Plan as they are in connection with an existing use.  
They will not materially alter the character or appearance of the area and will not affect the 
openness of this Green Belt site.   
 
The proposed works will also be appropriate in the context of the site also being 
designated for its nature importance.  As set out in the submitted ecological statement, the 
works to the reserve will be of benefit to a number of protected or qualifying species. 
 
The main issues to consider in respect of this proposal, and as raised by objectors to this 
proposal is the impact on flooding and drainage with regard being had by objectors to the 
Government's long term flood risk map for England. 
 
The Environment Agency (EA) were consulted as were the Council's drainage engineers 
(under their role as the Lead Local Flooding Authority) with a particular focus on surface 
water, tidal and fluvial flooding.   
 
Following an initial objection from the EA the applicant submitted a site specific Flood Risk 
Assessment (FRA). The FRA states that the "primary aim of the works is to improve the 
conditions for the important wintering and breeding bird populations by: 
 

- improving the effectiveness of the drainage system to prevent widespread surface 
water flooding in the winter months 

- enabling water to be retained in ditches and pools through the birds' breeding 
season (April - July)." 

 
The FRA notes that some of the works will take place adjacent to a flood bank and will 
require an environmental permit; a matter falling outside of this application for planning 
permission. 
 
This document provides for the history of site and changing management and 
infrastructure as context for the proposals, and also makes clear the responsibilities within 
this area namely: 
 

- Maintenance of the culverts under the highway is the responsibility of the Council 
- Maintenance of the drainage ditches on the inner marsh is the responsibility of the 

landowners (RSPB for Sutton's Marsh) 
- The main drainage culvert under Marine Drive and the connecting ditches at the 

north-eastern end of Crossens Inner Marsh were cleared by the Environment 
Agency and the Council in April 2011 and again in 2015. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4b



 
In respect of any hydrological links with housing to Truro Avenue and Exmoor Close the 
FRA is unequivocal that the surface water flooding experienced within the housing estate 
is not connected to surface water flooding frequently observed on Crossens Inner Marsh 
quoting on Environment Agency officer who stated in 2018: 
 
"As the Environment Agency understands it, contrary to the Main River map, Marshside 
Drain does not take flows from the estate (particularly Menivale Close, Truro Avenue and 
Exmoor Close). The open section of Marshside Drain has been drained in the past and 
inspected for a joining culvert from the estate, none have been found. In addition to this, at 
the downstream end, the Main River map does not accurately reflect the flow of water. 
There has been no structure observed that connects the downstream end of Marshside 
Drain (opposite the treatment works) and the other side of the road (or the Reserve for that 
matter) - although it is assumed there is a connection to the Reserve that ultimately leads 
to the known culvert through the road embankment. We see it as unlikely that the 
hydrology of the estate and Reserve are connected in a meaningful way." 
 
The FRA contends that the proposal will result in: 
 

- no change to the amount of surface water runoff as a result of the works 
- no impact on the flood risk of the land on the inland side of the flood bank, and 

therefore no impact on the housing estate 
- a reduction in the current level of flood risk by improving the drainage ditch network 

and connectivity of the drainage infrastructure on the marsh 
- the reduction in the current level of flood risk by preventing any influxes of sea water 

from reaching the coastal grassland, thereby significantly reducing the number of 
frequency of occasions of surface water flooding 

- the reduction in the current level of flood risk by significant improving the drainage 
channel and infrastructure linking the marsh ditch network with the primary outfall 
culvert, thereby making the removal of surface water flooding more efficient 

- the improvements of the inner marshes' ability to cope with future variations in 
seasonal rainfall and the wider impacts of climate change by making the removal of 
surface water flooding more efficient. 

 
The FRA also highlights the potential for risks associated if the works are not approved. 
 
Upon reviewing the FRA the EA removed their objection to the proposal, subject to the 
works adhering to the FRA and other submitted information.  In the absence of any 
competing and corroborated technical information, along with the removal of the objection 
from the EA, the Council cannot find any reason to disagree with the findings of the 
submitted FRA. 
 
As the proposal will not only not give rise to increased flood risk but will work towards 
reducing it is considered that the proposal is fully compliant with the aims and objectives of 
the Local Plan and all other material considerations including the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  

Page 24

Agenda Item 4b



 
It is therefore recommended that the proposal is granted consent with the standard time 
and compliance conditions only. 
       

Recommendation - Approve with Conditions  
 
Conditions  
 
This application has been recommended for approval subject to the following conditions 
and associated reasons: 
 
1) The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission. 
 
 Reason:  To comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990. 
 
2) The development hereby granted shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 

following drawings and document: 
 
 - PP-07258200 Crossens Inner Marsh 2018 Site Plan 
 - PP-07258200 Proposed Perimeter Ditch: Typical Cross-Section 
 - PP-07258200 Section Through Pool 1 ('G') (SW to NE) 
 - PP-07258200 Section Through Pool 2 ('H') (SE to NW) 
 - PP-07258200 Section Through Pool 1 'E', 'F' 
 - PP-07258200 Section Through Typical Pools 'A', 'B', 'C', 'D'. 
 - PP-07258200 Crossens Inner Marsh Habitat Works Flood Risk Assessment 
    
 Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory development. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4b



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 6th February 2019 

Subject:  DC/2018/02220 
 The Blundellsands Classic, 19 Blundellsands Road West  

Blundellsands  Liverpool L23 6BA 
  

Proposal: Replacement of existing white painted softwood timber windows and 
doors with new white uPVC windows and doors 

 
Applicant: The Blundellsands Classic                            

Limited 
  
 

Agent: Mr Richard Gee 
 Roman Summer Associates  
                   Ltd 

Ward:  Blundellsands Ward  
 

  

Summary 
 
The Blundellsands Classic is sheltered accommodation within Blundellsands Park 
Conservation Area. 
 
The proposal to change the windows and doors on a key public frontage from timber to 
uPVC is considered to be a harmful alteration, which would have a detrimental impact on 
the character and appearance of the Blundellsands Park Conservation Area. 
 

Recommendation: Refuse  
   
Case Officer Mrs Carol Gallagher 

 
 

Email planning.department@sefton.gov.uk 
 

Telephone 0345 140 0845 (option 4) 
 

Application documents and plans are available at: 

http://pa.sefton.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PJKJXZNWIHZ00 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4c

mailto:planning.department@sefton.gov.uk


Site Location Plan 

Page 28

Agenda Item 4c



The Site 
 
The Blundellsands Classic, 19 Blundellsands Road West is sheltered accommodation 
which includes three storey apartments and bungalow accommodation. The application is 
for 133 windows and doors to the elevation facing The Serpentine South as shown on the 
location plan. 
 

History (Relevant) 
 
DC/2017/02329: Replacement of existing painted softwood timber windows and doors to 
existing three storey sheltered accommodation apartment block and bungalows to be 
replaced with new white uPVC windows and doors (alternative to DC/2017/01553 - refused 
18th October 2017).  Approved with conditions 5th April 2018. 
 
DC/2017/01553: Replacement of existing painted softwood timber windows and doors to 
existing three storey sheltered accommodation apartment block and bungalows to be 
replaced with new white uPVC windows and doors. Refused 18th October 2017. 
 
S/2000/0775: Partial demolition of the hotel and conversion of the remaining building to 3 
No flats and the construction of 50 residential apartments (53 units) (Alternative to 
S/2000/0216 refused 28th September 2000).  Approved within conditions 21st February 
2001. 
 
S/2000/0216: Partial demolition of the hotel followed by the conversion of the remaining 
building into 3 No flats and the construction of 57 residential apartments (60 units). 
Refused 28th September 2000.  
 

Consultations 
 
Conservation  
 
The apartments are a modern extension to the original Blundellsands Hotel, constructed in 
2002.  
 
Whilst the proposed replacement windows do attempt to mimic some traditional type 
features (such as butt joints and grained wood effect), uPVC is not an appropriate material 
within the Conservation Area as it cannot create the same traditional appearance of timber, 
nor match its finer proportions or detailing. Equally, it is important that extensions, in 
sensitive historic contexts, such as Conservation Areas, conform to a high standard of 
design and utilise quality materials.  
 
This is important in order to preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the 
Blundellsands Park Conservation Area. 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 4c



The apartments are regarded as having a detrimental impact on the character of the 
Conservation Area (as described in the Conservation Area Appraisal - adopted in March 
2008) due to its high density, proximity to the road and materials being poor imitations of 
historic materials. The introduction of modern plastic windows on this highly visible and 
prominent elevation would further exacerbate this harmful impact, and therefore uPVC 
replacement windows are regarded as inappropriate replacements.  
 
The setting of the former Blundellsands Hotel, constructed in the late 19th Century, which 
is identified as an important secondary landmark of Jacobethan style with its red brick and 
welsh slate roof (Conservation Area Appraisal), would be compromised by the introduction 
of uPVC windows to the modern extension, harming the positive contribution the former 
hotel makes to the special character and appearance of the Blundellsands Park 
Conservation Area. 
 

Neighbour Representations 
 
No objections to the scheme and a petition of support signed by 49 residents of The 
Blundellsands Classic and endorsed by Cllr Sam Marshall, who wish to highlight the 
following:  
 

1. We have the utmost respect and appreciation for heritage and we applaud the Local 
Planning Authority and Planning Committee for taking tough decisions to preserve 
and protect this. Like you, we cherish this Conservation Area. 

 
2. But we feel that there are circumstances when a balanced, common sense and 

proportional stance needs to be taken. 
 

3. In the case of our homes, this is a large, modern building with modern deteriorating 
windows that require urgent replacement. This is not a building of any heritage note 
that warrants or deserves special protection. 

 
4. We feel that the replacement of poor quality modern windows with better quality 

windows will enhance the building. The use of uPVC flush sash windows system, as 
a material in the specific circumstances of this case, is entirely appropriate and will 
cause no harm to the special character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 

 
5. We therefore – very respectfully – urge members of the Planning Committee to 

support our stance and approve this Planning Application. 
 

Policy Context 
 
The application site lies within an area designated as Primarily Residential in the Sefton 
Local Plan which was adopted by the Council in April 2017 and is within Blundellsands 
Park Conservation Area.    

Page 30

Agenda Item 4c



Assessment of the Proposal 
 
The proposal is to replace the white painted softwood timber windows and doors to part of 
the Blundellsands Classic (excluding the original part of the hotel, which fronts 
Blundellsands Road West/ The Serpentine South) and install white woodgrain uPVC doors 
and windows to the remaining elevations (i.e. those which front the highway and are in 
public view).  
 
In the Design & Access statement provided by the agent, the reason given for the 
preferred uPVC windows & doors is “the white timber frames have perished and are rapidly 
deteriorating, resulting in draughts and uncomfortable living conditions for many of the 
elderly residents of the Classic. Added to which the poor appearance of those windows 
results in a poor, shoddy appearance which does little to preserve the special character 
and appearance of the Conservation Area”. 
 
The issues to consider are the principle of development and the impact on Blundellsands 
Park Conservation Area. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
The application site is a complex of apartments within a residential area.  Flats or 
apartments do not benefit from ‘permitted development’ rights, which means planning 
permission is required for changes to the materials used for windows and doors.   
 
Impact on Blundellsands Park Conservation Area 
 
The application Ref No DC/2017/02329 was a compromise negotiated with the Local 
Planning Authority following the refusal of the previous application (DC/2017/01553) and 
followed a meeting with the Board of the Blundellsands Classic, the case officer and the 
Conservation Officer. 
 
The application gave consent for all windows and doors not visible from The Serpentine 
South to be replaced with a high standard of uPVC and all existing windows and doors 
visible from The Serpentine South to be repaired/redecorated. 
 
This application is to replace the timber windows and doors visible from The Serpentine 
South with uPVC.  
 
This elevation is highly visible from the highway and public view due to its proximity to the 
street and height. According to the window schedule submitted, the proposal affects a total 
of 133 windows and doors over 4 levels. 
 
The original part of the building (formerly the Blundellsands Hotel) is identified within the 
Blundellsands Park Conservation Area Appraisal as an important secondary landmark of 
Jacobethan style with its red brick and welsh slate roof. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 4c



The apartments are a modern extension to the original hotel building and were granted 
Planning Approval in 2001. They are regarded as having a detrimental impact on the 
character of the Conservation Area (as described in the Conservation Area Appraisal) due 
to the high density, proximity to the road and materials being poor imitations of historic 
materials. 
 
Introduction of modern plastic windows and doors on a highly visible frontage would further 
exacerbate this harmful impact and are therefore regarded as inappropriate replacements. 
 
The Blundellsands Park Conservation Area Appraisal gives advice in relation to windows 
and doors: 
 
Windows and doors 
 
The original buildings within Blundellsands would have had a mix of painted timber sash 
and casement windows. However, a significant percentage of the houses within the area 
have had their windows replaced either with uPVC or inappropriate casement windows.  
 
This is particularly damaging to the character of not only the individual properties but also 
to the street scene. The fineness of the traditional framing and glazing bars is unobtrusive, 
yet reinforces the vertical emphasis of the facades. Thus, the introduction of thicker 
framing members (almost always necessary with uPVC), removal of glazing bars, 
reconfiguration of the window etc., all have a detrimental effect on the appearance of the 
property and overall visual quality of the area. 
 
Though less common than replacement windows, replacement front doors are also 
detrimental to the character of the area. Where uPVC is used, replacement doors are 
particularly obtrusive and lack quality of design and detail found in timber originals. 
 
Local Plan Policy NH12 states that:   
 
“Development within conservation areas or affecting their setting will only be permitted 
where the proposal is of high quality design and preserves or enhances the character or 
appearance of the conservation area or its setting”. 
 
It goes on to say that “Development must ensure that replacement or new features are of 
an appropriate style and use materials which are sympathetic to the age, architecture and 
features of the affected property”, and 
 
“Development which harms elements which make a positive contribution to the significance 
of a conservation area or its setting will not be permitted, unless it can be demonstrated 
that public benefits outweigh the harm”. 
 
It is considered the introduction of modern uPVC windows and doors does not comply with 
this policy in the following respects: 

Page 32

Agenda Item 4c



 they are not of an appropriate style and do not use materials which are sympathetic 
to the age, architecture and features of the affected property 

 they would harm elements which make a positive contribution to the significance of 
a conservation area, and  

 they would not preserve or enhance the character or appearance of Blundellsands 
Park Conservation Area. 

 
Paragraph 132 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that “When considering 
the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
great weight should be given to the asset`s conservation. Significance can be harmed or 
lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or development within its setting. 
As heritage assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require clear and convincing 
justification”.  
 
The apartments are regarded as having a detrimental impact on the character of the 
Conservation Area (as described in the Conservation Area Appraisal) due to their high 
density, proximity to the road and materials being poor imitations of historic materials. 
Introduction of modern plastic windows would further exacerbate this harmful impact, and 
therefore uPVC replacement windows are regarded as inappropriate replacements. 
 
The original proposal was to replace the timber windows and doors of the entire complex 
with uPVC. This was refused in October 2017.  Following discussion about the level of 
harm the proposed changes would cause to the Conservation Area, an amended scheme 
to replace windows and doors which were not on a public frontage was approved in April 
2018. This comprised about 70% of the total complex.  
 
The current proposal relates to the frontage onto The Serpentine South which is highly 
visible.  
 
The applicant’s reasons for wanting to change to uPVC are noted. However the use of well 
fitted and maintained timber windows will resolve concerns about draughts and 
uncomfortable living conditions.  uPVC cannot create the same traditional appearance of 
timber, nor match its finer proportions or detailing.  It is considered that in this prominent 
position such materials would be harmful to the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area.   
 
Conclusion 
 
Taking the Blundellsands Classic development as a whole, permission has already been 
granted for the use of uPVC materials to the windows and doors of the majority of the 
complex where the elevations do not have a public frontage. 
 
The applicant has given reasons for changing the materials in the remaining part of the 
complex.   
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 4c



However, this part comprises a highly visible street frontage where the use of uPVC would 
be very obvious. It is not considered that the justification provided by the applicant 
outweighs the harm which uPVC would cause to the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area. 
 
It is therefore recommended that the application be refused. 
 

Recommendation - Refuse  
 
Reason for Refusal 
 
This application has been recommended for refusal for the following reason: 
 
  The proposed development, by virtue of the use of inappropriate materials, would 

have a detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the Blundellsands 
Park Conservation Area and is considered contrary to the provisions of Policy NH12 
of the Local Plan, the Blundellsands Park Conservation Area Appraisal and 
paragraph 132 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
Informative 
 
 The refused plans are: The site outlined in red as shown on Drwg No 6247 - 01, The 

Flush Sash detailed brochure, Drwg No`s 6247 07, 6247 - 12 and the drawings titled: 
First floor window schedule, window type elevation, 1 of 2 and 2 of 2, second and 
third floor window schedule. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34

Agenda Item 4c



Report to: PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 6th February 2019 

Subject: DC/2018/01439 
 84 College Road, Crosby Liverpool, L23 0RP  
 
Proposal: Variation of conditions 3 and 4 pursuant to planning permission 

S/2004/0096 (approved 30.03.2004) to allow the premises to operate as 
a restaurant open between 09:00 and 18:00 Monday to Wednesday and 
09:00 to 22:00 Thursday to Sunday 

 
Applicant: A.S.C BARS LTD Agent: Mr Bill Wadkin  

 
Ward:  Victoria Ward  

  

Summary 
 
The proposal seeks to allow the premises to operate within the wider A3 Use Class 
(restaurants and cafes) given that is it is currently restricted to a coffee lounge only and for 
extended opening times. The main issues to consider are the impact a more extensive use 
and longer opening times would have on neighbouring residents and the general 
environment and matters relating to access, parking and highway safety.  
 
Overall it is considered that the proposal is acceptable, the applicant has reduced the 
opening times on what was initially proposed and agreed to a condition preventing 
live/amplified music and entertainment. A detailed Noise Assessment has been submitted 
recommending enhanced soundproofing. It is not considered that comings and goings or 
external activities would significantly harm neighbouring residential properties. There are 
no highway safety concerns or unacceptable implications in terms of parking provision. 
 
The proposal therefore complies with adopted local and national policy and is 
recommended for approval.  
 

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 

   

Case Officer Mr Steven Healey 
 

 

Email planning.department@sefton.gov.uk 
 

Telephone 0345 140 0845 (option 4) 
 

Application documents and plans are available at: 

http://pa.sefton.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PCOEWDNW06900 

Page 35

Agenda Item 4d

mailto:planning.department@sefton.gov.uk


Site Location Plan 

Page 36

Agenda Item 4d



The Site 
 
The application site comprises the ground floor and external areas of 84 College Road 
which is located at the junction with Brookfield Avenue in Crosby. It features a distinctive 
lean-to conservatory and is currently occupied by ‘Mustard & Co.’ having been known as 
‘Olive Tree’ for ten years previously.  

 

History 
  
Planning permission was granted in March 2004 to change the use of the ground floor from 
retail to a coffee shop (reference S/2004/0096). The application was granted subject to the 
condition that the premises only open for business between 10:00 and 18:00 hrs and that it 
shall only be used as a coffee shop and for no other Class A3 purpose.  
 
Planning permission was granted in November 2006 for the erection of a conservatory to 
the side of the premises alongside an area of outdoor seating (S/2006/0856). 
 
Planning permission was refused in September 2008 to vary the conditions attached to 
permission S/2004/0096 in order to allow the premises to operate as a bistro and extend 
the permitted opening times to between 09:00 and 22:00 (reference S/2008/0608). The 
application was refused due to noise and disturbance likely to be caused by comings and 
goings up to 22:00 hrs in the evening. 
 

Consultations 
 
Environmental Health 
Based on the submitted Noise Assessment and subsequent correspondence with the 
applicant’s noise consultants there is no objection to the proposal to vary conditions 3 and 
4. The Noise assessment has used a relatively stringent target level of NR14 for noise 
break out from the premises in to the nearest sensitive receptor (first floor dwelling).  The 
assessment indicates that noise mitigation would be required to achieve this standard and 
recommends an independent ceiling treatment which can be secured by condition. 
 
The Noise Assessment accounts for background music however not for amplified music or 
live entertainment which may require a greater level of protection. Bottle bin collections 
often provoke complaints and as such the Environmental Health team investigate these 
concerns under the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
Based on the location it recommended that the outdoor seating area should be closed by 
20:30/21:00. The kitchen extraction system details are acceptable.  
 
Highways Manager 
No objection as there are no highway safety implications. It is however noted that if the 
gates to the rear yard are to open onto the public highway as shown on the submitted 
plans this would be an offence under the Highways Act.  

Page 37

Agenda Item 4d



 

Neighbour Representations 
 
58 signature petition (primarily signed by residents of Brookfield Avenue, Woodville 
Avenue and College Road) endorsed by Councillor Byrom was received by Planning 
Services on 30th August 2018. The reasons for opposing the application are ‘a loss of 
residential amenity, noise and disturbance and increased on-street parking’. The same 
petition was also submitted to the Licensing Committee although this was granted by the 
Council on 18th October 2018.  
 
Individual letters of objection received from four addresses on Brookfield Avenue, two on 
College Road and one on Woodville Avenue on the following grounds:- 

 Late night noise and disturbance associated with comings and goings in a 
residential area with most of the premises fronting Brookfield Avenue 

 Area is home to many elderly residents and families 

 Possibility of music/entertainment, alcohol related rowdy behaviour and noise 
associated with emptying bottle bins in yard 

 Increased demand for on-street parking worsening existing issues for residents and 
encouraging parking on pavements 

 Application was refused in 2008 for extended hours, nothing has changed since 
however issues with noise and parking have worsened in area 

 Premises is breaching existing permission by opening later and advertising alcohol 
sales on signage 

 Kitchen extraction system already installed contrary to what is permitted and 
odour/smells are evident 

 Poorly kept rear yard with rubbish piled up which is visible from the street given 
removal of gates and likely to attract vermin 

 Issues regarding anti-social behaviour, urination and smoking in alley to rear of 
premises 

 Numerous similar establishments in the area already with an increasing number 
which have worsened traffic and noise. 

 Applicant’s name ‘A.S.C. Bars’ indicates the intended activity and not a restaurant.  
 

Policy Context 
 
The application site lies within an area designated as residential in the Sefton Local Plan 
which was adopted by the Council in April 2017.   
 

Assessment of the Proposal 
 
The proposal is to vary an existing planning permission on site (‘Change of use of the 
ground floor of the premises to a coffee shop’) to allow the premises to operate within the 
wider A3 Use Class (as a restaurant) with extended opening times Thursday to Sunday 
only between 09:00 and 22:00.  
 

Page 38

Agenda Item 4d



The applicant initially applied for a change of use to a bistro/bar. It subsequently emerged 
that the intended business model is for a restaurant with ancillary alcohol sales falling 
under Use Class A3. Given that the premises already benefit from a restricted A3 use a 
revised application was submitted to vary the existing permission.  Firstly this sought 
extended opening times between 08:00 and 22:30 hrs. However, through further 
discussion with the Council, an alternative proposal was submitted seeking extended 
opening times Thursday to Sunday only between 09:00 and 22:00 hrs.  
 
The diversified business model of the premises has already been implemented in the form 
of a rebranding from ‘Olive Tree’ to ‘Mustard & Co.’ External signage reads ‘Breakfast, 
Brunch, Lunch, Coffee, Craft, Wine’ and it is understood the premises are offering a variety 
of themed nights including an Italian menu. 
 
The main issues to consider are the principle of development, impacts on local amenity 
and matters relating to access, parking and highway safety. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
The application site is situated within a Primarily Residential Area subject to Local Plan 
policy HC3, which only permits non-residential development when it can be demonstrated 
that an unacceptable impact will not be had on the living conditions of neighbouring 
properties and that the character of the area will not be harmed. 
 
In terms of character, the College Road corridor consists of various commercial uses at 
ground floor level including the application site which has functioned as a food and drink 
establishment for some time. The proposal to diversify from solely a coffee lounge to a 
restaurant is considered to be consistent with the prevailing characteristics of the area. 
While there are similar businesses operating to the northern end of College Road there are 
no such dine-in restaurants within 100m of the application site. This indicates there would 
not be an unacceptable grouping of similar uses and the proposal would contribute 
towards the vitality and viability of the immediate parade in which it sits.  
 
Impact on Neighbouring Residents 
 
The application site occupies a corner plot where College Road meets Brookfield Avenue 
which is wholly residential. It is noted that permission was granted in 2004 to change the 
use of the premises from a vacant retail unit to a coffee shop while an application for 
extended opening times was refused in 2008. The premises are relatively small-scale with 
a seating capacity of around 30. A key consideration is noise and disturbance associated 
with both internal and external activities. 
 
The previous application to extend opening hours at the premises was refused due to the 
proximity of residential properties and ‘their reasonable expectation of relative quiet in the 
late evening’. While it is acknowledged the site is separated from the main commercial 
stretch of College Road there are in fact numerous established uses within close proximity 

Page 39

Agenda Item 4d



to the site which operate outside of standard business hours such a public house and Hot 
Food Takeaways - one of which has been through the planning system. 
 
Since the 2008 decision there has been a distinct shift in the makeup of uses along 
College Road from a focus on retail to more food, drink and leisure uses which is a 
nationwide trend spurred by changing. This has ultimately led to more visitors to the area 
outside traditional business hours however there no evidence has been provided that 
cumulatively these are causing significant harm to the residential amenity of the area. It is 
thus not considered reasonable to single out the current proposal as unacceptable when 
there are other late evening and night time uses with similar relationships and proximities 
to residential properties including situations where such uses share party walls with 
residential properties.  
 
Noise particularly fuelled by drinking and live entertainment has been cited as a cause for 
concern and, while rowdy and possibly anti-social behaviour is a legitimate concern, to 
refuse the application on this ground would have to be founded on strong evidence. 
Restaurants are only associated with such activities in exceptional situations and the focus 
of these premises on fresh high quality food is considered unlikely to attract individuals 
with the sole motivation to drink to excess. The alley to the rear of the premises is not 
directly accessible for patrons and is therefore unlikely to lead to anyone using it in ways 
which would harm the living conditions of adjoining residents.   
 
In terms of general comings and goings 22:00hrs is considered a reasonable cut off point 
on weekdays given both the late evening and night time uses in the immediate vicinity and 
the changing dynamic of the area. This closing time has also been reduced from 22:30 hrs 
as was initially proposed. Recent planning approvals on College Road (Café V76 and Livin’ 
Kitchen) are subject to 22:00 hrs closing times on weekdays, therefore it would not be 
appropriate to allow later here. It is noted the premises only have a licence for alcohol 
sales between 10:00 and 22:00 hrs daily. It is not considered that the proposal in 
combination with the nearby pub or Hot Food Takeaways would lead to an unacceptably 
greater level of noise and disturbance. 
 
The applicant has submitted a Noise Assessment based on the proposed opening times 
and activities within. While the applicants secured Temporary Events Notices from the 
Licensing Committee during December 2018 and January 2019, live or amplified music 
and entertainment has not been factored in to the Noise Assessment. The applicant has 
however confirmed that their intention was only ever for such activities to take place on 
rare occasions and has agreed to a condition to be attached to any permission preventing 
this.  The noise assessment does however consider background music and the noise 
levels created within a ‘busy restaurant’ environment. Subject to enhanced soundproofing 
between the premises and flat above it is considered that no harm would be caused to 
adjoining or neighbouring residential properties as a result of noise from the premises.  
 
Environmental Health are satisfied with this approach and in terms of the outdoor seating 
area considers 20:30 hrs an appropriate cut off point to remove the furniture and ultimately 
discourage groups of people from staying outside. The report also makes 

Page 40

Agenda Item 4d



recommendations in terms of when bottle bins are emptied; it would be difficult to control 
this through planning. However given the infrequency with which this would occur, it is not 
considered to be a major issue. If this recommendation is not implemented, the 
Environmental Health Manager has the powers to investigate under possible Statutory 
Nuisance.  
 
While the Council does not endorse development taking place without the appropriate 
permissions in place it is understood that the premises have been operating fully as a 
licensed restaurant with extended hours on various days (predominantly weekends at 
present) since at least mid-November 2018 and neither the Planning or Environmental 
Health Managers have received any complaints regarding noise or disturbance.  
Overall it is considered that the proposal has not had, and will not have, an unacceptable 
impact on neighbouring properties by virtue of noise and disturbance. The character of the 
area has altered since the previous planning refusal on site and the applicant has worked 
proactively with Planning Services to seek solutions which were not considered during the 
previous application – these being the submission of a Noise Assessment supported by 
the Environmental Health and Planning Managers and a commitment to not hosting live 
events, entertainment or amplified music on site.  
 
General Environmental Issues 
 
A number of complaints have been received regarding odour. The applicant has submitted 
and odour risk assessment and statement advising that a ‘domestic’ extraction system has 
been installed based on the type of cooking taking place on site. Sample menus and 
photographs on social media indicate that there are no ‘invasive’ cooking techniques taking 
place (i.e. deep fat frying) which have the greatest potential to cause odour and smoke if 
not controlled effectively. The proposal certainly has no greater potential to cause odour 
than the nearby Hot Food Takeaways. The Environmental Health Manager has reviewed 
details of the extraction system which has been installed and considered the odour control 
in place is acceptable (i.e. filtration and fans).  
 
The proposal makes provision for waste storage and recycling within the large rear yard 
which is considered acceptable. While residents have submitted evidence of the yard 
being poorly kept good waste management practices would resolve this. If managed 
properly there would be no unacceptable visual impacts. The Environmental Health 
Manager is able to intervene should this be causing harm or attracting vermin.  
 
Access, Parking and Highway Safety 
 
The Council’s Highways Manager has raised no objection to the proposal. While there may 
be high demand for parking given the busy commercial nature of College Road, it is 
considered that sufficient capacity exists within the area to accommodate parking during 
the additional hours for which permission has been applied.  This also reflects there would 
generally be less demand for parking into the evening.  
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 4d



There are double yellow lines which encompass the junction at College Road and 
Brookfield Road to prevent dangerous parking. The increase in vehicle movements 
associated with use of the premises as a small-scale restaurant into the evening/night 
would not be so significant as to cause ongoing disturbance to existing residents. The 
majority of trips are likely to be made via College Road as opposed to Brookfield Road 
which is the area’s principal arterial road. This would blend in with existing traffic and 
patrons of the nearby Hot Food Takeaways especially.  
 
Other Matters 
 
It has been pointed out that the applicant’s trading name includes the word ‘bar’. However 
the application is for a restaurant with no ‘vertical drinking’ (i.e. standing in groups with an 
alcoholic drink), the menu is consistent with this. Any material change which results in 
drinking becoming the dominant use of the premises would require a change of use 
application. 
 
Conclusion  
 
Taking all of the above into account the proposal is considered acceptable. It is considered 
that, subject to conditions, there would be no unacceptable harm to neighbouring residents 
as a result of extending the permitted opening times while the Highways Manager 
considers there is sufficient parking to accommodate the proposal without causing harm to 
highway safety. The application therefore complies with adopted local policy and is 
recommended for approval.   

 
Recommendation - Approve with Conditions 
 
Approve with Conditions  
 
Conditions  
 
This application has been recommended for approval. The following conditions and 
associated reasons apply: 
 
1) The development hereby granted must be carried out strictly in accordance with the 

following details and plans:- Block Plan  (Drawing Number 18/45/02 Rev A)  received 
by the Council on 30th July 2018, Proposed Floor Plan (18/45/02 Rev A) received on 
23rd August 2018 and Equipment Specification contained within the Odour Control 
Risk Assessment received on 21st January 2019. 
 

 Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory development. 
 

2) The sound insulation scheme or another scheme of the same sound reduction 
performance as detailed in section 8.2 of Soundtesting (14th January 2019) 
Environmental Noise Report, Ref: 11865 Rev 1 shall be installed within two months of 
the date of this permission and be retained thereafter. 

Page 42

Agenda Item 4d



 
Reason: To protect the first floor flat from unacceptable noise and disturbance. 

 
3) No live music, amplified music or live entertainment shall take place within the 

premises or in external areas. 
 

Reason: To prevent noise and disturbance to nearby residents and to prevent the 
emission of noise above a level that would be detrimental to the aural amenity of the 
area. 

 
4) The premises shall not be open for business outside the hours of 09:00 to 18:00 

Monday to Wednesday and 09:00 to 22:00 Thursday to Sunday. 
 

Reason: To protect nearby residents from unacceptable levels of late evening and 
night time noise and disturbance. 

 
5) The outdoor seating area shall not be open for business and shall be removed from 

the external pavement outside the hours of 09:00 to 20:30 Monday to Sunday. 
 

Reason: To protect nearby residents from unacceptable levels of late evening and 
night time noise and disturbance. 

 
Informatives 
 
1) Background music is not prescribed under the Licensing Act 2003 and is exempt from 

other activities regarded as regulated entertainment. It shall be defined as any 
amplified music, which has a music noise level not exceeding LAeq 10min 65dB. 
Measurements to determine the music level shall be made at a position not less than 
1 metre from any loudspeaker, instrument or wall.  

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 4d



This page is intentionally left blank



eport to: PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 6th February 2019 

Subject:  DC/2018/02114 
 The Marine Travel Arena, Rossett Park College Road, Crosby 

L23 3AS 
  

Proposal: Erection of a single storey building within the car park to be used as a 
table tennis centre (Use Class D2). 

 
Applicant: Mr Graham Turner 
   
 

Agent: W V O'Hara 
 Chartered Architect 
 

Ward:  Victoria Ward  
 

  

Summary 
 
The proposal is for the erection of a detached single storey building in the north-west 
corner of the car park to be used as a table tennis centre which is to be displaced as a 
result of the main clubhouse being redeveloped.  
 
The proposal would ensure a valuable sport and community use is retained on site. This 
benefit outweighs the loss of a limited number of private and informal (i.e. unmarked) 
parking spaces and the proposal is unlikely to generate additional vehicular traffic.  
 
The proposal complies with adopted local and national policy and is therefore 
recommended for approval.  
 

Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 

   

Case Officer Mr Steven Healey 
 

 

Email planning.department@sefton.gov.uk 
 

Telephone 0345 140 0845 (option 4) 
 
 

Application documents and plans are available at: 

http://pa.sefton.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=PILN2FNW00100 

Page 45

Agenda Item 5a

mailto:planning.department@sefton.gov.uk


Site Location Plan 

Page 46

Agenda Item 5a



The Site 
 
The application site comprises the car park serving Marine A.F.C.’s Rossett Park (The 
Marine Travel Arena) at College Road, Crosby.  
 

History 
 
Various historic applications associated with club related buildings and structures on site. 
Most recently planning permission was granted in February 2018 (reference 
DC/2017/02269) for the erection of a new single storey amenity block and turnstile at the 
grounds following demolition of an existing block behind the main stand.  
 
Planning permission was refused in April 2014 (DC/2014/00188) for the erection of a 
convenience store within the car park alongside a new single storey block for Marine 
A.F.C. following demolition of an existing block (same as above). An appeal was 
subsequently dismissed due to the deemed likelihood of significant adverse impact on the 
safe and free flow of traffic along College Road as well as ‘interplay’ between the 
operations of the club and convenience store.  
 

Consultations 
 
Environmental Health Manager 
No objection. 
 
Highways Manager 
No objection as there are no highway safety implications. It is proposed to remove six car 
parking spaces to accommodate the table tennis facility. Parking restrictions are already in 
place along this section of College Road with junction protection in place at its junctions 
with side roads. As such, the loss of these car parking spaces is considered to be unlikely 
to cause any issues in respect to highway safety in the local area.  
 
Local Planning Manager 
The scheme is in an area of land designated as being ‘Open Space’ therefore Local Plan 
policy NH5 applies. This policy allows for proposals consisting of ‘alternative’ sports which 
it is considered in this instance outweighs the loss of a limited number of parking spaces.  

  

Neighbour Representations 
 
The application has been called before Planning Committee by Councillor Byrom who has 
stated that the parking in the area around is at a premium and the loss of off street parking would 

exacerbate the problems and should be resisted, unless a ‘comprehensive parking plan’ can be 
agreed for the operation of the grounds. 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 5a



Policy Context 
 
The application site lies within an area designated as Open Space in the Sefton Local Plan 
which was adopted by the Council in April 2017.   
 

Assessment of the Proposal 
 
The proposal is for the erection of a single storey building within the north-west corner of 
the car park to be used as a table tennis centre. The building is needed due to the loss of a 
room used by ‘Bath Street Marine Table Tennis Club’ within an existing building on the site 
due to be demolished in order to facilitate the redevelopment of the main clubhouse. Until 
summer 2016 a similar sized building was located where the proposed building is planned. 
 
The main issues to consider are the principle of development, matters relating to 
transportation, access and highway safety, design and impacts on neighbours.  
 
Principle of Development 
 
The application site and wider Rossett Park complex is designated as Open Space in the 
Local Plan. Under policy NH5 development of built facilities necessary for the use of the 
site (principally football) are considered acceptable in principle.  
 
Other forms of development are considered acceptable where open space or outdoor 
sports facilities are surplus to requirements; the loss would be replaced by equivalent or 
better provision in a suitable location; or the development is for alternative sports and 
recreational provision, the needs for which clearly outweigh the loss. 
 
This above is reinforced within paragraph 97 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) which applies the same exceptions to development of ‘open space, sports and 
recreational buildings and land’. In this respect the proposal for ‘alternative sports 
provision’ is acceptable in principle where the loss of land is justified due to a surplus, 
suitable off-site replacement provision is available or the benefits associated with the table 
tennis centre clearly outweigh this loss. The land in question is hardstanding. It was 
previously host to a building but is now used as parking. 
 
For the purpose of the definition of main town centre uses in NPPF Annex 2 a small-scale 
tennis centre is not considered to constitute an ‘intensive sports or recreation use’ requiring 
a Sequential Test to be carried out.  
 
Transportation, Access and Highway Safety 
 
The car park at Rossett Park is under private ownership and the control of Marine A.F.C. 
who use it during match days. Apart from this, and in fact during most of the week, the car 
park is used as a pay and display car park. The loss of six spaces could occur regardless 
should the owners wish to limit access to this part of the car park which was host to a 
building until summer 2016 and has not been formally marked out for parking. The 

Page 48

Agenda Item 5a



applicant has also pointed out that the opening of Marine AFC’s private car park, 
approximately 3 years ago, as a public pay and display car park, has helped to reduce the 
congestion on College Road. This has been well received by local businesses and 
shopkeepers.  
 
The Highways Manager has raised no objection to the application and given that the 
proposal involves the relocation of an existing use on site there is unlikely to be additional 
demand for parking or increased comings and goings. The applicant has advised that the 
current table tennis centre is primarily used in the daytime and primarily by the older 
generation many of which travel on foot or by public transport. In this respect it is not 
considered that the development would exacerbate existing issues. 
 
While a local Ward Councillor has suggested that a Parking Plan be provided it is not 
considered reasonable to require this of the current planning application. The principal 
motive for this would be to resolve various existing issues and not the impacts of this 
specific proposal which are unlikely to lead to increased demand for parking.   
 
The previous refusal on site for a convenience store is not considered to be of direct 
relevance to the current application. This was not refused due to loss of parking spaces but 
due to increased traffic movements in and out of Rossett Park and likely conflicts with 
visitors to the different uses on site.   
 
Design and Character 
 
The 12.2m x 7.3m building would be finished with metal sheet cladding and a fibreglass 
roof. The basic and functional design is consistent with other buildings on site and the 
building previously positioned here. It would be set back from College Road, restricted to a 
single storey in height and appear no more visually dominant than any neighbouring 
buildings. It is therefore acceptable from a design perspective.  
 
Impacts on Neighbours 
 
The building would be close to the boundaries of residential properties. However, given its 
height and boundary treatments within the site, it would not have an unacceptable impact 
in terms of loss of outlook or light. The Environmental Health Manager has raised no 
objection and it is not considered that the proposal would lead to an unacceptable level of 
noise above what is taking place elsewhere on within the site internally or externally.  
 
It is considered unlikely that the small-scale building could support any intensive Class D2 
uses (e.g. cinemas, bingo halls and other leisure uses) which may have different impacts 
on neighbours.  
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 5a



Conclusion  
 
Taking all of the above into account the proposal is considered acceptable. The benefits in 
ensuring the ongoing presence of an important alternative sports use at Rossett Park are 
considered to outweigh the loss of hardstanding used for informal parking which itself has 
only been freed up following demolition of a building around 3 years ago. The proposal is 
unlikely to generate significantly greater comings and goings given it involves the 
relocation of an existing use and there are no highway safety implications. The proposal 
therefore complies with adopted local and national policy and is recommended for 
approval.  
 

Recommendation - Approve with Conditions 
 
Approve with Conditions  
 
Conditions  
 
This application has been recommended for approval. The following conditions and 
associated reasons apply: 
 
1) The development hereby permitted must be commenced before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission. 
 
 Reason:  To comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990. 
 
2) The development hereby granted must be carried out strictly in accordance with the 

following details and plans:- Site Plan, Location Plan (Drawing Number BS.03), 
Proposed Layout (BS.01) and Proposed Elevations (BS.02). 
 

 Reason:  To ensure a satisfactory development. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50

Agenda Item 5a



Report to: PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Date of Meeting: 6th February 2019 

Subject: DC/2018/01681 
 Land West Of Damfield Lane, Maghull    
 
Proposal: Erection of 14 detached dwellinghouses, access road and associated 

landscaping, a pond feature and nature trail 
 
Applicant: Roman Summer   
  Associates Ltd 

Agent: 
 

Ward:  Sudell Ward  

  
 

The above application was considered by Planning Committee on 16th January 2019. 
Committee resolved to refuse the application on the following grounds:-  
 

 The site is designated as White Land in the Sefton Local Plan and is not 
allocated for housing development,  

 

 The proposed development conflicts with the Maghull Neighbourhood Plan.  
 

The Chief Planning Officer considers that the above reasons for refusal do not give 
sufficient clarity as to why the development is unacceptable in planning terms.  

 
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 states ‘When the local planning authority give notice of a decision or determination 
on an application for planning permission where planning permission is refused, the notice 
must state clearly and precisely their full reasons for the refusal, specifying all policies and 
proposals in the development plan which are relevant to the decision.’ 
 
As the reasons for refusal do not specify how the development conflicts with the policies of 
the Sefton Local Plan and the Maghull Neighbourhood Plan, they fail to meet the critical 
tests of the relevant Order. 
 
The applicant has lodged an appeal with the Planning Inspectorate against ‘non-
determination’ as the decision has not yet been issued. This has taken the decision out of 
the hands of the Local Planning Authority and Planning Committee cannot now determine 
the application.   
 
However, it is important that Planning Committee sets out clearly the details of the policies 
in both Plans which it considers supports what would have been the decision to refuse 
planning permission.  
 
This is essential so that the Local Planning Authority is in the strongest position to defend 
the appeal. 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6a



It is RECOMMENDED that Planning Committee provide further detail, including specific 
policies, supporting the resolution at their meeting on 16th January 2019 to refuse the 
application at Damfield Lane, Maghull. 
 

Page 52

Agenda Item 6a



Planning Committee   

Visiting Panel Schedule  

Date Monday 4th February 2019 
Start:  10:00 am at BOOTLE TOWN HALL 

 
 

Agenda 
Item Time Application Details Ward 

4D 10:20am 

 
DC/2018/01439 

84 College Road, Crosby 
L23 0RP 

 

Victoria 

5A 10:30am 

 
DC/2018/02114 

The Marine Travel Arena 
Rossett Park College Road, Crosby 

L23 3AS 
 

Victoria 

4C 10:50am 

 
DC/2017/02220 

The Blundellsands Classic 
19 Blundellsands Road West, Blundellsands 

L23 6BA 
 

Blundellsands 

4A 11:30am 

 
DC/2018/00801 

41-43 King Street, Southport 
PR8 1LG 

 

Dukes 

 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report to: Planning 
Committee 
 

Date of Meeting: Wednesday 6th  
February 2019 

Subject: Planning Appeals 
 

Report of: Chief Planning 
Officer 
 

Wards Affected: (All Wards); 

Portfolio: Portfolio - Planning and Building Control 
 

Is this a Key 
Decision: 

N Included in 
Forward Plan: 

No 
 

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report: 

No 
 

 
Summary: 
To advise members of the current situation with regards to appeals.  Attached is a list of 
new appeals, enforcement appeals, development on existing appeals and copies of 
appeal decisions received from the Planning Inspectorate. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
(1)  That the contents of this report be noted for information since the appeals decisions 

contained herein are material to the planning process and should be taken into 
account in future, relevant decisions. 

 
 

 
Reasons for the Recommendation(s): 
 
To update members on planning and enforcement appeals 
 
 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications) 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
What will it cost and how will it be financed? 
 
(A) Revenue Costs 
 N/A 
 
 
(B) Capital Costs 
 N/A 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Implications of the Proposals: 
 

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): 
There are no resource implications  
 

Legal Implications: 
There are no legal implications 
 

Equality Implications: 

There are no equality implications. 

 
Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose: 
 

Protect the most vulnerable: Not applicable 
 

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: Not applicable 
 

Commission, broker and provide core services: Not applicable 
 

Place – leadership and influencer: Not applicable 
 

Drivers of change and reform: Not applicable 
 

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Not applicable 
 

Greater income for social investment:  Not applicable 
 

Cleaner Greener: Not applicable 
 

 
What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when? 
 
(A) Internal Consultations 
 
The Head of Corporate Resources (FD.5528/19) and Chief Legal & Democratic Officer 
(LD4652/19) has been consulted and has no comments on the report   
 
(B) External Consultations  
 
 Not applicable 
 
Implementation Date for the Decision 
 
Immediately following the Committee / Council meeting. 
 
(Please delete as appropriate and remove this text) 
 

Contact Officer: Tina Berry 

Telephone Number: 0345 140 0845 (Option 4) 

Email Address: planning.department@sefton.gov.uk 

Page 56

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 
Appendices: 
 
The following appendices are attached to this report:  
 
Appeals extract from the back office system plus copies of any Planning Inspectorate 
decisions. 
 
Background Papers: 
 
The following background papers, which are not available anywhere else on the internet 
can ben access on the Councils website www.sefton.gov.uk/planapps 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Please note that copies of all appeal decisions are available on our website: 

http://pa.sefton.gov.uk/online-applications/

Contact Officer: Mr Steve Matthews 0345 140 0845 (Option 4)

Email: planning.department@sefton.gov.uk

Appeals Received and Decisions Made

Appeals received and decisions made between 18 December 2018 and 20 January 2019

Appeal Decisions

DC/2017/02361 (APP/M4320/W/18/3210853)

Embassy Building 51A Piercefield Road Formby Liverpool L37 7DG 

Replacement of existing first floor windows, new high level 

vent, re-decoration of existing facade.

Decision Date:

Decision:

Start Date:

Procedure: Written Representations

04/10/2018

08/01/2019

Part Allow/Dismissed

Reference:

DC/2017/01892 (APP/M4320/W/18/3208450)

36 Winstanley Road Waterloo Liverpool L22 4QW 

Change of Use of the existing attached garage to the side of 

the property to a Beauty Salon.

Decision Date:

Decision:

Start Date:

Procedure: Written Representations

07/09/2018

21/12/2018

Dismissed

Reference:

DC/2018/00198 (APP/M4320/W/18/3207103)

Site Of Churchill House Kings Park Seaforth  

Erection of 30 dwellings with associated car parking spaces 

and public open space

Decision Date:

Decision:

Start Date:

Procedure: Written Representations

22/08/2018

21/12/2018

Dismissed

Reference:

DC/2018/01183 (APP/M4320/D/18/3210019)

108 Churchgate Southport PR9 7JE

Erection of single storey extension to the rear of the 

dwellinghouse following demolition of existing single storey 

extension. (Retrospective Application)
Decision Date:

Decision:

Start Date:

Procedure: Householder Appeal

30/10/2018

19/12/2018

Dismissed

Reference:

New Appeals

DC/2018/00995 (APP/M4320/W/18/3212354)

72 Seaforth Road Seaforth Liverpool L21 4LF 

Change of use of part of the ground floor from a public house 

to a hot food takeaway including associated works to the 

basement and yard area and erection of an extraction flue to 

the rear elevation Decision Date:

Decision:

Start Date:

Procedure: Written Representations

20/12/2018

Reference:

39 - 41 South Road Waterloo L22 5PE 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Appeals received and decisions made between 18 December 2018 and 20 January 2019

DC/2018/01649 (APP/M4320/W/18/3217070)

Installation of extraction ductwork from the kitchen on first 

floor level, installation of door and glazing to provide access to 

the roof (retrospective) and erection of new timber faced beer 

store to roof. Decision Date:

Decision:

Start Date:

Procedure: Written Representations

15/01/2019

Reference:

DC/2018/00194 (APP/M4320/W/18/3214164)

33-35 Botanic Road And 23 Manor Road Southport PR9 7NE

Variation of condition 7 pursuant to planning permission 

DC/2016/01319 approved 30/09/2016 to allow an outdoor 

seating area to the side of 23 Manor Road, Southport.
Decision Date:

Decision:

Start Date:

Procedure: Written Representations

24/12/2018

Reference:

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 3 December 2018 

by Alexander Walker  MPlan MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 8th January 2019 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/M4320/W/18/3210853 

51A Embassy Building, Piercefield Road, Formby L37 7DG 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Mr Phillips on behalf of Tatton Property Investments against the 

decision of Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council. 

 The application Ref DC/2017/02361, dated 29 November 2017, was refused by notice 

dated 9 March 2018. 

 The development proposed is the replacement of existing first floor windows, new high 

level vent, re-decoration of existing facade. 
 

Procedural Matters 

1. Notwithstanding the description of development set out above, the proposal 

involves three distinct, and severable, elements.  The first is the replacement 
first floor windows; the second is the high level vent; and, the third is the re-
decoration of the existing façade.  

Decision 

2. The appeal is dismissed insofar as it relates to the replacement first floor 

windows.   

3. The appeal is allowed insofar as it relates to the high level vent and 
redecoration of the façade at 51A Embassy Building, Piercefield Road, Formby 

L37 7DG in accordance with the terms of the application, Ref DC/2017/02361, 
dated 29 November 2017, so far as relevant to that part of the development 

hereby permitted, and subject to the following conditions. 

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years 
from the date of this decision. 

2) The development hereby granted shall be carried out strictly in 
accordance with the following drawings: 100 Rev 3, 101 Rev 1, 102 Rev 

1, 104 Rev 2 and 105 Rev 1 so far as relevant to that part of the 
development hereby permitted. 

Main Issue 

4. The main issue is whether the proposal preserves or enhances the character or 
appearance of the Green Lane Conservation Area. 

Reasons 

5. Section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 states that special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/W/18/3210853 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

or enhancing the character or appearance of Conservation Areas.  This is 

reflected in paragraph 132 of the National Planning Policy Framework (the 
Framework), which states that when considering the impact of a proposed 

development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight 
should be given to the asset’s conservation.  

6. The appeal building is located within the Green Lane Conservation Area (the 

CA). The CA is relatively small in size with much of it occupied by open space, 
notably the cricket pitch and church yard, with very few buildings.  Buildings 

within it vary in size and architectural style.  The relationship between the 
buildings and open space makes an important contribution to the significance 
of the CA. 

7. The appeal property sits on the crossroads of Piercefield Road and Green Lane.  
Due to its size and siting, the building is a prominent feature within the CA.  

Although it is of a different scale to the residential properties lining Green Lane 
to the north, it is of a similar scale to The Grapes Hotel on the opposite side of 
the Lane.  Together, these buildings create a gateway to the CA.  Although not 

a statutory listed building, the appeal property is distinctive in the streetscene 
with its art deco façade enhancing its prominence and dominance.  Whilst the 

ground floor displays modern shop frontages, the first floor is largely unaltered, 
retaining the original finely detailed timber windows, which are in a poor 
condition.  The north elevation of the building is less attractive, with the 

fenestration expressing little consistency.  However, this elevation is only 
readily seen on exiting the CA and is not the main elevation fronting the Lane.  

Overall, the detailing, scale and rhythm of the windows makes an important 
contribution to the character and appearance of the building, which itself is a 
non-designated heritage asset, and the significance of the wider CA.  I 

acknowledge that there is no Conservation Area Appraisal and the Advisory 
Leaflet does not refer to the building.  However, I do not consider that this 

reduces the building’s important contribution to the CA. 

8. The Council raise no objection to the high level vent or the redecoration of the 
existing façade.  Based on the evidence before me, I find no reason to conclude 

otherwise.  I therefore intend to allow these parts of the appeal.  

9. The Council’s objection to the proposal is with regard to the replacement 

windows.  There are 10 existing first floor windows which are identical in their 
detailing, scale and rhythm.  The windows have very delicate detailing with 
coloured and textured glass and projecting glazing bars, stile and rail which 

provide depth and interest. 

10. The proposed replacement windows would be in the same position and be of 

the same size as the existing.  Therefore the scale and rhythm of the 
fenestration would not be altered.  The windows would be constructed of 

aluminium rather than timber, which by itself is not strictly harmful, providing 
the detailing is appropriate.  However, the proposed glazing bars would be 
inserted between the glazing, thus providing no projection or depth.  Moreover 

the frames, mullions and casements would have flat edges and therefore would 
appear heavy and inappropriately crude in their design.  Overall, the 

replacement windows would significantly detract from the appearance of the 
property and the significance of the CA.  

11. Paragraph 196 of the Framework confirms that where a development proposal 

would lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated 

Page 62

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/W/18/3210853 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the 

proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimal viable use.  The 
proposed replacement windows would have less than substantial harm to the 

significant of the CA.  The proposed windows would likely be cheaper than like-
for-like replacement timber windows and would not likely require as frequent 
maintenance work.  I also note that the current condition of the windows 

creates drafts and pose a risk to safety with regard to potential falling glass. 
However, I do not consider that this amounts to a public benefit that would 

outweigh the harm to the CA.  

12. I conclude therefore that the replacement windows would fail to preserve or 
enhance the character of the CA.  As such, it is contrary to Policies NH9 and 

NH12 of the Local Plan for Sefton 2017, which seek to ensure that development 
protects the significance of Seftons’s heritage assets and preserves or 

enhances the character or appearance of Conservation Areas.  Furthermore, it 
would fail to accord with the heritage objectives of the Framework. 

Conditions 

13. In relation to the parts of the proposal I find acceptable, a condition setting a 
time limit for the commencement of development is necessary in the interests 

of proper planning.  For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning a condition is attached clarifying the approved plans, so far as they 
are relevant to the part of the proposal that is permitted.   

Conclusion 

14. For the reasons given above, having regard to all matters raised, the appeal is 

allowed in relation of the high level vent and the re-decoration of the existing 
façade.  However, in relation to the replacement windows, the appeal is 
dismissed. 

Alexander Walker 

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 18 December 2018 

by Andrew McGlone  BSc MCD MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 21 December 2018 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/M4320/W/18/3208450 

36 Winstanley Road, Waterloo L22 4QW 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Mr Carl Roberts against the decision of Sefton Metropolitan 

Borough Council. 

 The application Ref DC/2017/01892, dated 12 October 2017, was refused by notice 

dated 12 February 2018. 

 The development proposed is change of use of existing garage (B8) to beauty salon. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed.   

Main Issues 

2. The main issues are the effect of the proposal on: (i) the living conditions of 36 
and 36a Winstanley Road, with regards to noise, odour and privacy; and (ii) 

highway safety, with regard to the proposed access and parking arrangements.   

Reasons 

Living conditions 

3. The appeal site is on corner of Winstanley Road, Stuart Road and Back 
Winstanley Road.  Flats occupy the first floor of the property (No 36a), while 

the ground floor is occupied as a two bedroom property (No 36). The nearby 
area is predominantly characterised by residential dwellings.  Two storey 

terraced properties line Winstanley Road and Stuart Road.  Commercial 
premises line Crosby Road North to the west. A handful of commercial premises 
line Stuart Road, while a motor vehicle garage is on Back Winstanley Road.     

4. Policy HC3 of A Local Plan for Sefton (Local Plan) explains that non-residential 
development will be permitted in Primarily Residential Areas provided that it 

can be demonstrated that the proposal will not have an unacceptable impact on 
the living conditions of neighbouring properties. 

5. The proposed salon would occupy the existing garage which is between the 

main body of the building and the footway on Back Winstanley Road.  The 
appellant submits that the salon would open between the hours of 09:00 to 

17:00 on Tuesday and Wednesday, 09:00 to 19:00 on Thursday and Friday and 
09:00 to 18:00 on Saturday.  The salon would offer four treatment chairs.  Two 
would be used to wash hair and two for treatment.  The appellant states that a 

maximum of two staff (full-time or part-time) would work in the salon 
depending on business needs.        

Page 64

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/W/18/3208450 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

6. While the hours would be during the daytime, there are no details of the 

services that would be offered at the salon.  Based on the number of treatment 
chairs and the plans that are before me, the salon could potentially be used by 

four customers and four members of staff.  This is likely to be the worst case 
scenario, but there is a bedroom next to the proposed salon in No 36.  I note 
the proposed acoustic treatment of the salon, but in the absence of firm details 

about the salon’s services, I cannot be certain that a planning condition would 
be relevant to the development to be permitted, and as such the proposed use 

would not cause an unacceptable impact on their living conditions.     

7. A separate pedestrian access is proposed in the Back Winstanley Road 
elevation.  This would provide a convenient entry and exit for some customers 

and staff who may travel to and from the proposed salon on foot.  Although 
people using this route would not cross in front of No 36, people would still be 

likely to use the existing access from Winstanley Road for ease.  Moreover, the 
use of the existing off-street parking provision would mean that comings and 
goings by vehicles and pedestrians would result in noticeable and harmful 

effects to the living conditions of occupants of Nos 36 and 36a who have 
several window openings at ground and first floors facing into the parking area.  

The effect would occur during the proposed opening times.  

8. Concerns are raised about a loss of privacy in No 36, but the existing car 
parking area is used by residents of No 36a, and the people using footways in 

the area do already pass close to residential properties.  While odour is also a 
concern of the Council, I do not consider that the proposed salon would lead to 

an unacceptable impact given its scale.   

9. The proposal has not demonstrated that it will not have unacceptable impacts 
on the living conditions of Nos 36 and 36a.  Thus, I conclude, on this issue, 

that significant harm would be caused to their living conditions, with regards to 
noise.  The proposal would conflict with Local Plan Policy HC3 and paragraph 

127 f) of the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) which seeks 
a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.   

Highway safety 

10. At most the appeal site offers four off street parking spaces.  This provision 
serves the residential properties on the site and it includes the garage that the 

proposed salon would occupy.  It is the appellant’s intention to share the use of 
the remaining parking spaces between the residential properties and the 
proposed salon.  The proposed pedestrian access would lead onto a narrow 

section of footway which is not suitable for all due to its width.  Pedestrians 
could, however, use the existing access from Winstanley Road. Notwithstanding 

my findings on living conditions, the proposal would therefore facilitate the safe 
and easy movement into, out of, and within the site for pedestrians, cyclists 

and those with limited mobility. 

11. Winstanley Road and Stuart Road are used for on-street car parking as 
properties on these roads do not offer much, if any, off-street parking 

provision.  The Council and the occupant of No 36 explain that on-street 
parking provision in the area is at a premium, with people struggling to find a 

space and there being a history of parking problems in the area.  Although the 
appellant suggests that any parking issues are caused by nearby residents 
owning multiple vehicles due to the number of families living there, I must 

assess the proposal based on the circumstances as I find them.   

Page 65

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/W/18/3208450 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

12. Although there were numerous spaces available on Winstanley Road and no 

vehicles were parked on the appeal site at the time of my morning site visit, 
this represents a snap shot in time when less residents are less likely to be at 

home.  There is also no substantive evidence which indicates to me that I 
ought to disagree with the evidence of the Council and the resident of No 36.   

13. While there are bus services on Crosby Road North and not everyone travelling 

to and from the site may use a car, the appeal scheme would increase the 
demand for the limited amount of car parking on the site.  Consequently, 

vehicles associated with Nos 36 and 36a together with the proposed salon 
would be reliant on the on-street provision which is said to be at a premium.  
Parking on Stuart Road and Back Winstanley Road is also subject to Traffic 

Regulation Orders which prevent parking at particular times of the day.  Given 
this, there would be an increased chance that vehicles would be parked 

inappropriately such as on the footway.  Moreover, due to the site’s location at 
the junction of Winstanley Road, Stuart Road and Back Winstanley Road where 
visibility is poor as a result of the alignment of Back Winstanley Road, there 

would be a strong likelihood that residents, customers and staff seeking to 
access or egress from the site would not be able to safely and easily move into, 

out of, and within the site.  Thus, conflicts could potentially occur.   

14. On this issue, I conclude that the proposed access and parking arrangements 
would potentially lead to severe unacceptable impacts to highway safety.  The 

proposal would not accord with Local Plan Policy EQ2 which seeks to ensure 
safe and easy movement into, out of, and within the site for everyone.  The 

scheme would also conflict with Framework paragraph 109 which says that 
development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there 
would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 

impacts on the road network would be severe. 

Conclusion 

15. While the proposed salon would be an accessible local service given its location, 
the merits of this does not outweigh the harm that I have identified in respect 
of neighbouring occupants living conditions and highway safety.   

16. For the reasons set out above, I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed.  

Andrew McGlone 

INSPECTOR 

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 18 December 2018 

by Andrew McGlone  BSc MCD MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 21 December 2018 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/M4320/W/18/3207103 

Kings Park, Seaforth L21  1BB 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Ms Karen Lee of One Vision Housing against the decision of 

Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council. 

 The application Ref DC/2018/00198, dated 31 January 2018, was refused by notice 

dated 29 June 2018. 

 The development proposed is the erection of 30 No. dwellinghouses. The breakdown of 

the dwellings is as follows: 16 x two-storey dwellinghouses – 3 bedrooms; 3 x two-

storey dwellinghouses – 2 bedrooms; 11 x bungalow dwellinghouses – 2 bedrooms. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed.   

Main Issue 

2. The main issue is whether the open space on the appeal site is surplus to 

requirements. 

Reasons 

3. The appeal site consists of two parcels of land which are either side of Kings 

Park.  The site was once occupied by two high-rise residential tower blocks.  
Montgomery House was to the south-west of the site next to Claremont Road, 

while Churchill House was to the north-east of the site next to Sandy Road.  
Both tower blocks were demolished in 2016.  A third tower block, Alexandra 

House is in the south-east corner of the site.  This was refurbished and 
extended before the other two tower blocks were demolished.  Two and three 
storey residential properties largely characterise the surrounding area.     

4. The development plan, A Local Plan for Sefton (Local Plan) was adopted in 
2017 following public consultation and examination in public.  Two parts of the 

appeal site, about 0.56 hectares in size were, on the adoption of the Local Plan, 
designated as Open Space under Local Plan Policy NH5.  This is reflected in the 
Council’s Policies Map.  Notably, the sites of the former tower blocks were not 

included in the Open Space designation.  However, this land which makes up 
roughly 0.74 hectares of the appeal site does form part of a Primary Residential 

Area under Local Plan Policy HC3.  The Council raises no concerns to this land 
being developed for housing.  My findings therefore focus on the land 
designated as Open Space.   

5. At the time when Montgomery House and Churchill House were demolished, I  

Page 67

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/W/18/3207103 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

understand that they along with Alexandra House were next to open space 

referred to as Kings Park.  The Council’s Open Space and Recreation Study, 
November 2015 (OSRS) classified these spaces as Community Parks which is 

the lowest level of park identified.  Kings Park contained two equipped 
playground areas.  Community Parks according to the OSRS are generally 
small, serve the local catchment of around 400 metres and community and are 

individually unlikely to have a diverse range of facilities but in combination in a 
neighbourhood are able to meet a range of recreational requirements.   

6. Even though the appellant says that Kings Park was mostly used by residents 
of the tower blocks, I agree with the Council that Kings Park is likely to have 
been more widely used by local residents for recreation, even if the land is 

privately owned.  The appellant accepts this.  A tarmacked pathway connects 
Kings Park to Sandy Road.  I noted signs which confirmed the appellant’s 

stance to restrict access to the land due to ongoing maintenance and the risk 
of accidents occurring, which they say they would be potentially liable for.  I 
note that the land of the former tower block sites was grassed over to maintain 

a positive relationship with local residents who have views across the land.  As 
a whole the appeal site was mainly grassed, except for Alexandra House and its 

parking and recreation areas. Given this, the appeal site is not entirely 
previously developed land having regard to the Annex 2 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework).   

7. The appellant submits that the land which has been designated as Open Space 
has been done so incorrectly as it is private land, and that, as a result Local 

Plan Policy NH5 should not be applied to the appeal scheme.  I note the 
appellant’s points, especially around the definition of open space, but it is not 
the role of a planning application or a section 78 appeal to examine whether or 

not the appeal site should be allocated as Open Space.  The opportunity to do 
so was during the Local Plan process when the forward direction for Sefton was 

set as a result of the Local Plan being found to be ‘sound’.  If the appellant was 
unhappy with the then proposed allocation of the site, this should have been 
raised as part of the Local Plan process.   

8. The appellant may be right in terms of the extent of the Open Space 
designation which seems to include parts of the adopted highway among other 

things.  Nevertheless, I have determined the appeal in accordance with the 
development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.       

9. Open Space in the urban area in terms of the Local Plan comprises of, among 

other things, main parks, neighbourhood parks (including local parks and play 
areas, public nature sites in the urban area and larger, public amenity green 

spaces).  Furthermore, Annex 2 of the Framework defines open space as: all 
open space of public value, including not just land, but also areas of water 

(such as rivers, canals, lakes and reservoirs) which offer important 
opportunities for sport and recreation and can act as a visual amenity.  Hence, 
having regard to the Local Plan and the Framework, there is no distinction 

between public and private open space.  The key consideration is whether it 
has public value.   

10. The appellant accepts that the land has been used for recreation and it 
provides visual amenity.  Given this and based on my own observations, I am 
of the view that the land designated as Open Space does offer public value. 

Consequently, Local Plan Policy NH5 states that other development proposals 

Page 68

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/W/18/3207103 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

are acceptable in principle on open space, where an assessment has been 

undertaken which has clearly shown the public open space or outdoor sports 
facilities to be surplus to requirements.  This is broadly consistent with 

Framework paragraph 97 a).  There are two other criteria to Local Plan Policy 
NH5 but the appellant says that neither apply to the appeal scheme.       

11. The OSRS is the basis for assessing whether public open space is surplus to 

requirements.  The OSRS provides a detailed analysis of open space in Sefton.  
It explains how open space is assessed and compares different types of open 

space for each settlement area in the borough to identify surpluses and 
deficits.  The OSRS identifies that a surplus of open space may exist only where 
all of the following factors are met: accessibility; quantity; and quality.   

12. Before exploring the merits of these factors, it is important to outline the 
extent of the neighbourhood that the public open spaces serve.  Based on my 

observations of the site and its surroundings I agree with the Council’s view of 
the neighbourhood.  This is broadly defined by the busy roads of Princess Way 
to the south and Crosby Road South to the west, the Liverpool to Southport 

railway Line to the east and by Cambridge Road to the north.   

13. In terms of accessibility the site or open space needs to be within 2 kilometres 
(km) of a main park and within 1 km of one or more neighbourhood parks and 
within 400 metres of one or more community parks; and where there is 

duplication in the type and range of functions of community and neighbourhood 
parks.  There is no dispute between the parties that the site is within 2 km of a 

main park. To the north and east is Rimrose Valley Country Park, a Countryside 
Recreation Area.  As the crow flies the park is roughly 300 metres from the 
site, but journeys using Brook Vale from the neighbourhood would be further 

than this.  No specific distances have been provided, but it is likely to be within 
1 km of the site.  People in the neighbourhood could reach the park using lit 

footways and the crossing point across Sandy Road, even though the path does 
traverse the railway line.  I note the park may be Highways England’s preferred 
route for the port access road, but I do not have any details of this before me. 

Based on current circumstances, I give this little weight.   

14. I also note the accessibility issues associated with the Neighbourhood Parks of 

Potters Barn Park and Bowersdale Park to the west and south.  Some parts of 
the neighbourhood are also a fair distance away from these parks, but in any 
event they are likely to be within the 1 km threshold.   

15. I recognise that the appeal scheme would result in the formation of public open 
space and a playground, but the development would be on the only Community 

Park in the area.  Moreover, this provision is fairly central and within 400 
metres of nearly all the neighbourhood.  Parks higher up in the hierarchy fulfil 
a function within the Borough, but residents are less likely to visit them on a 

day-to-day basis or benefit from their visual amenity.  Thus, there is not a 
surplus of open space in terms of accessibility given the need to have one or 

more Community Parks within 400 metres of the site or open space.    

16. In terms of quantity, the settlement area needs to have around, or meet the 
quantity of open space, and any loss would not have a significantly detrimental 

impact on the quantity of open space.  The appeal site lies within the Crosby 
settlement area in which there are the fewest Community Parks according to 

the OSRS.  This is the lowest figure across Sefton.  The appeal scheme would 
provide public open space and a playground, but even if I were to use the 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/W/18/3207103 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

appellant’s figures of the site’s Open Space designation, the proposed areas 

would be considerably smaller than the existing quantity of Open Space.  I 
recognise that the proposed provision would be maintained by the appellant 

who is a Registered Social Housing provider.   However, at best the proposed 
provision carries a neutral weight due to the further loss of Community Park 
provision in Crosby.  In any event, this would not alter or outweigh my findings 

in terms of accessibility, and there is no substantive evidence before me either 
way in terms of quality.   

17. I conclude that the open space on the appeal site is not surplus to 
requirements.  Significant harm would stem from the proposal which would 
conflict with Local Plan Policy NH5 and Framework paragraph 97 a) as the 

appellant’s assessment has not clearly shown the public open space to be 
surplus to requirements.     

Other matters 

18. Reference is made by the appellant to documents which formed part of the 
Council’s evidence for their Local Plan; however they are not part of the 

development plan.  I do, however, agree with the appellant about the scheme’s 
effect on highway safety, ecology, the environment, drainage, design and 

landscaping subject to the imposition of planning conditions.  The appeal 
scheme would also contribute to the supply and mix of high-quality housing in 
Sefton in an accessible location.  I note the proposed quantum of houses, but I 

have no details of how the scheme has been developed to obtain funding as 
suggested, and fulfil the appellant company’s plans around replacement and 

upgrading.  In any event, these matters do not alter or outweigh my findings 
on the main issue.   

Conclusion 

19. For the reasons set out above, I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed.  

Andrew McGlone 

INSPECTOR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 3 December 2018 

by Alexander Walker  MPlan MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State 

Decision date: 19th December 2018 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/M4320/D/18/3210019 

108 Churchgate, Southport PR9 7JE 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Mr David Tomlinson against the decision of Sefton Metropolitan 

Borough Council. 

 The application Ref DC/2018/01183, dated 19 June 2018, was refused by notice dated 

13 August 2018. 

 The development proposed is a single storey rear extension following demolition of 

existing single storey extension. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Procedural Matters 

2. At the time of my site visit, an extension had already been constructed.  The 
Council confirm that the works that have been carried out are slightly different 

to the plans submitted with the application subject of this appeal as the 
extension as built is 2.9m high whereas the proposed plans indicate an 

extension 2.7m high.  Also, the plans indicate that the side elevation of the 
extension would be approximately 0.2m set back from the boundary with 106 
Churchgate.  The extension as built is on the boundary and is flush with the 

existing flank elevation of the original dwelling.  I am required to consider the 
proposal on the basis of the same details that were before the Council when it 

made its decision and for the avoidance of doubt I have determined the appeal 
on the basis of the plans as submitted, not what has been constructed. 

3. Following the submission of the appeal, the Council confirm that they have 

served an enforcement notice on the appellant.  This has had no bearing on my 
consideration of the s78 appeal before me. 

Main Issue 

4. The main issue is the effect of the development on the living conditions of the 
occupants of the neighbouring residential property, 106 Churchgate, with 

particular regard to outlook and light. 

Reasons 

5. The extension is within proximity of two facing windows and a door in the side 
elevation of No 106 which serve a kitchen diner.  There is a third window to the 
rear of the kitchen diner.  From the eastern most facing window, the outlook is 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/D/18/3210019 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

dominated by the original flank elevation of the appeal property.  From the 

second facing window, the outlook is dominated by the extension in situ, 
although there are some views above it of the two-storey outrigger on the 

appeal property and limited skyline views are visible from an oblique angle.   

6. The appellant contends that the boundary between the two properties 
previously consisted of a 2m high brick wall.  The Council disputes this, arguing 

that it was lower and this was corroborated by the occupant of No 106, who 
confirmed that it was low enough for her to look over.  The Council provides a 

photograph of the property when the disputed wall was in situ, which suggests 
that the wall was lower than 2m in height.  Based on the evidence before me, I 
consider that the wall was significantly lower than 2m in height.    

7. As a result of the proximity of the eastern most facing window to the original 
flank elevation of the appeal property, the proposed extension would likely 

have a negligible, if at all any, effect on the outlook from it.  However, the 
2.7m high flank wall of the extension would rise significantly higher than the 
previous boundary wall, even if it was 2m in height, and, in addition to its 

substantial depth, it would therefore significantly diminish the amount of light 
entering it.    

8. With regard to the second facing window, this would be directly opposite the 
extension.  Prior to the construction of the extension in situ, the outlook from 
this window would have been dominated by the two-storey outrigger on the 

appeal property.  Nevertheless, due to the set-back position of the outrigger 
from the boundary with No 106 and its relatively short depth, there would have 

been some depth to the outlook, allowing views over the boundary wall and 
there would have been a moderate amount of visible sky.  The proposal would 
eliminate this depth and create a blank elevation that would rise significantly 

above the boundary wall, thus severely diminishing the outlook from the 
window.  For the same reason, the level of light serving this window would be 

significantly reduced. 

9. During my site visit I had the opportunity to view the site from both of these 
windows in No 106.  The kitchen diner that they serve is narrow and long.  The 

lack of light entering and outlook from these windows as a result of the 
extension that has been constructed creates a gloomy and oppressively 

confined living space.  Whilst the extension that is the subject of this appeal 
would be set back slightly from the boundary and be approximately 0.2m lower 
in height, I do not consider that it would make a marked difference to the 

current unacceptable living conditions as a result of the extension in situ. 

10. The Council argues that the presence of an archway creates a physical 

boundary between the kitchen and dining area and therefore should be 
considered as two separate rooms.  However, I disagree.  The archway is 

almost the full width of the kitchen allowing full movement between the two 
areas and given the relatively small size of the dining room, they are clearly 
designed to be functionally and physically read as a single room.  Nevertheless, 

whilst the rear window allows uninterrupted views of the rear garden and 
provides sufficient light to serve the dining area, due to the distance of this 

window from the kitchen area it provides inadequate outlook or light to a 
considerable portion of the overall room.   

Page 72

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/D/18/3210019 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

11. I have had regard to the effect of the extension on the light entering the side 

door of No 106.  However, given that the glazing in the door is limited, I do not 
consider that there is any material effect on the light entering it. 

12. I have also had regard to the effect of the extension on the outlook from the 
rear garden of No 106.  The extension would almost link the side elevation of 
the original dwelling with No 106’s detached garage.  It would clearly be visible 

from parts of the garden closest to the dwelling and the alleyway between the 
two properties.  However, given its substantial size, there would be sufficient 

outlook retained throughout most of the garden to ensure that it would not 
significantly harm its usability.  

13. I find therefore that the proposal would significantly harm the living conditions 

of the occupants of 106 Churchgate with regard to outlook and light.  As such, 
it would be contrary to Policy HC4 of the Local Plan for Sefton 2017, which, 

amongst other things, seeks to ensure that extensions and alterations are 
designed so that there shall be no significant reduction in the living conditions 
of the occupiers of neighbouring properties, with particular regard to loss of 

outlook and light.  In addition, it would fail to comply with the advice set out in 
the Sefton Council House Extensions Supplementary Planning Document 2018, 

which states that extensions should avoid causing harm to the windows of 
neighbouring properties, with regard to light and outlook.  Furthermore, it 
would fail to accord with paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework, which states that development should create places with a high 
standard of amenity for existing and future users. 

Other Matters 

14. The appellant contends that an extension could be erected under permitted 
development rights that would be higher than the proposed extension with a 

3m high elevation on the boundary.  The Council contends that such a scheme, 
as identified on the plans submitted, would not be permitted development due 

to the presence of the first floor of the existing outrigger, which appears to be 
an extension to the original property.  Based on the evidence before me, such 
a proposal would not be permitted development as, taking into account the 

existing first floor extension, it would fail to comply with Part 1 Schedule 2 
Class A Paragraph A.1 (h) and (j) of The Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015.  Therefore, I do not find that 
this represents a fallback position. 

15. The appellant has referred me to a number of planning permissions granted by 

the Council for extensions in the locality.  However, based on the limited 
evidence before me, I am not satisfied that any of these schemes are directly 

comparable to the appeal proposal, with particular regard to the height of the 
extension and its proximity to habitable room windows.  Accordingly, I attribute 

these cases limited weight.  In any event, I have considered the proposal on 
the basis of its own merits. 

16. I have had regard to the recent appeal decision1 referred to me by the Council.  

The details of the scheme are not before me and therefore I cannot be certain 
that there are any direct similarities with the current proposal. Accordingly, I 

attribute this case limited weight. 

                                       
1 Appeal ref APP/M4320/D/18/3200900 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/M4320/D/18/3210019 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          4 

17. I acknowledge the appellant’s need for the extension to accommodate his 

family.  However, I do not consider that these circumstances outweigh the 
harm I have identified above.  I have also had regard to the potential 

enforcement action that the Council may proceed with against the existing 
extension and the subsequent financial implications.  However, such risks are 
always a possibility in instances whereby development proceeds prior to 

planning permission being granted. 

18. I note that there is a dispute regarding the boundary line between the appeal 

property and No 106.  However, matters of land ownership have not had any 
bearing on my consideration of the planning merits of the proposal. 

Conclusion 

19. For the reasons given above, having regard to all matters raised, the appeal is 
dismissed. 

Alexander Walker 

INSPECTOR 

 

 

 

Page 74

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 January 2019
	4a DC/2018/00801 - 41 to 43 King Street, Southport
	4b DC/2018/01767 - Marshside RSPB Nature Reserve, Marine Drive, Southport
	4c DC/2018/02220 - The Blundellsands Classic, 19 Blundellsands Road West, Blundellsands
	4d DC/2018/01439 - 84 College Road, Crosby
	5a DC/2018/02114 - The Marine Travel Arena, Rossett Park, College Road, Crosby
	6a DC/2018/01681 - Land West Of Damfield Lane, Maghull
	7 Visiting Panel Schedule
	8 Planning Appeals Report
	Enc. 1 for Planning Appeals Report
	appeals report - committee
	01 APPEAL DECISION_51A Piercefield Road
	02 Winstanley Road - Appeal Decision
	03 Kings Park - Appeal Decision
	04 APPEAL DECISION - 108 Churchgate



